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CUTTER&BUCK wix.

September 15, 2004
Dear Shareholder,

‘We write in a time of transition, the end of a successful era for Cutter & Buck and

the beginning of a period of new opportunities.

As Fran Conley steps down as Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, Doug
Southern will assume the duties of the Chairman of the Board, and Bill Swint will
become interim Chief Executive Officer. We are pleased that the company had
such skilled managers available to keep its momentum going while we search for a

permanent Chief Executive Officer.

In the era now ending, we did a successful turnaround. We exited unprofitable
business lines, emphasized doing profitable business in our core markets, in-
creased selected prices, and decreased inventory. We settled the shareholder suits
and SEC investigation. We re-engineered our business processes in every part of
the company, and strengthened internal controls at every level. The results are

a return to profitability, with good gross margins and operating margins, lower
inventory and receivables, and a strong balance sheet. Equally important, we have
preserved and enhanced the brand positioning as upscale, fine quality, with careful

distribution. We believe now have both a fine brand and strong financial position.

We are very pleased that our shareholders have benefited from these results. On
the first day of the 2004 fiscal year the stock price was $3.45, and on the last day it
was $10.50. In addition, we have instituted a quarterly dividend and a stock-buy-
back program.

We introduced the Annika Collection by Cutter & Buck, an exciting collection
of fashion-forward golf apparel for women featuring technical fabrics and fine

detailing.

We also announced the Integrity Pique shirt. We have a deep and long-standing
commitment to the environment and to social accountability. The Integrity Pique
shirt is a reflection of our values, and we believe it appeals to a growing number of
customers who desire high-quality products that are functional, stylish, and in line

with their personal values.

We are very pleased with the condition of the company today. We have a great

brand, loyal customers, and many exciting opportunities.

hss?y

Frances M. Conley Douglas G. Southern
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U.S. SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, DC 20549

Form 10-K

ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE
SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the fiscal year ended April 30, 2004
Or

[J  TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE
SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the transition period from to

Commission File No. 0-26608

CUTTER & BUCK INC.

(Exact Name of Registrant as Specified in Its Charter)

Washington 91-1474587
(State or Other Jurisdiction of (I.R.S. Employer
Incorporation or Organization) Identification No.)

701 N. 34" Street, Suite 400
Seattle, WA 98103
(Address of Principal Executive Offices, Including Zip Code)

(206) 622-4191
(Registrant’s Telephone Number, Including Area Code)

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13
or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period
that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for
the past 90 days. Yes No [J

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K is not
contained herein, and will not be contained, to the best of registrant’s knowledge, in definitive proxy or
information statements incorporated by reference in Part 111 of this Form 10:K or any amendment to this
Form 10-K. Yes No

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is an accelerated filer (as defined in Exchange Act
Rule 12b-2) Yes No [

The aggregate market value of the voting common stock held by non-affiliates of the registrant as of
October 31, 2003, the last business day of the registrant’s most recently completed second fiscal quarter, was
$78,976,996 based on the last reported sale price of the Company’s Common Stock on that day as reported
by the NASDAQ National Market System.

The aggregate market value as of July 9, 2004 of the voting stock held by non-affiliates of the Registrant
was approximately $113,980,110 based upon the closing price as reported by NASDAQ. As of such date,
there were 10,884,944 shares outstanding of the Registrant’s Common Stock, no par value per share.

Documents incorporated by reference:

(1) Portions of the Registrant’s definitive 2004 Proxy Statement to be filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission within 120 days after the close of our fiscal year end are incorporated by reference
into Part III hereof.
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PART 1

Item 1. Business
Overview
Cutter & Buck Inc., a Washington corporation formed in 1990, is based in Seattle, Washington.

We design, source, market and distribute high-quality men’s and women’s sportswear under the
Cutter & Buck brand. We sell our products primarily through golf pro shops and resorts, corporate
accounts, upscale specialty retail stores, and international distributors and licensees.

Recent Development

On June 24, 2004, we announced that Fran Conley, CEQ, will transition out of her position as
CEO. On July 10, 2004 we entered into a Transition Agreement with Ms. Conley, which provides for
her to remain the Company’s Chairman and CEO, and a member of the Company’s Board, through
September 15, 2004. Under the terms of the Agreement, Ms. Conley will also remain an employee
through March 15, 2005. We are beginning a national search for a successor to our CEO.

Brand

The Cutter & Buck brand enjoys a high degree of consumer acceptance and loyalty. We emphasize
world-class quality and leadership in design, customized textiles, finishing details and construction. We
use vibrant color in updated but classic styling. Market research confirms that this has led to a high
level of consumer satisfaction.

Our primary consumer market is men and women age 30 and over who actively pursue their
passions in life, who recognize quality and who want to associate with a high-quality brand. We reach
our target market in partnership with a variety of retailers and wholesalers who recognize the value of
premium, branded apparel.

Products and Design

Our men’s line offers sportswear suitable for golf, business casual, family activities, active lifestyles,
and casually elegant situations. We offer knit and woven shirts, pants and shorts, sweaters, vests, wind
and rain apparel, jackets and accessories. Our women’s line is smaller and concentrates on clothing for
golf, active lifestyle and casual weekend use. During fiscal 2004, 85% of our sales were men’s apparel
and 15% were women’s apparel. Most of our golf customers and some of our corporate and specialty
retail customers want their logos embroidered on our apparel. We have a significant in-house
embroidery operation to produce these embroidered logos.

We offer two main seasonal collections each year, Spring and Fall. Each season includes several
“deliveries” or collections which convey a theme or attitude through color, styling, and fabric. The
Spring season is generally sold from July through December, with product shipping to customers from
November through April. The Fall season is generally sold from January through June, with product
shipping to customers from May through October.

We also offer “core” styles, certain key sportswear items which are in demand for several seasons,
sometimes for years. During fiscal 2004, 28% of our product revenues came from seasonal collections
and 72% from core styles.

Our in-house design and merchandising teams develop plans for each season’s collections for each
distribution channel. After looking at fabrics from around the world, we generally design our own
textiles, which are then unique to Cutter & Buck. This enables us to work with factories to develop the



combinations of textile characteristics and colors that are best for each style. We design and develop
our products to look elegant and to wear well. To achicve these objectives, we emphasize high-quality
fabrics, particularly natural fibers and technical performance fabrics, designs that favor comfort during
active motion, and careful construction with details that enhance longevity.

Our golf and specialty retail store customers tend to order more heavily from the seasonal
collections, and to fill in their orders with core styles; our corporate customers tend to order mainly
core styles, and occasionally use items from the seasonal collections. We can thus construct lines which
are tailored for each distribution channel, but which have many styles in common.

In our area of updated traditional sportswear, changes of fabric and body shapes tend to be
gradual. Our product lines evolve from season to season. This provides stability in the design
environment and consistency in our product offerings. Nevertheless, our ongoing success is dependant
on our ability to offer styles that please consumer tastes, and we could misjudge consumer desires for
color, style, or fabric for one or more seasons. If we misjudge the demand for our products, we could
experience insufficient or excess inventory levels, missed market opportunities or higher markdowns,
any of which could substantially harm our business or our brand image.

Product Development and Production

Our in-house specialists create detailed specifications for color, construction methods, and finishing
steps for each garment. Using these specifications, factories make the garments to our high-quality
standards.

We contract for the manufacture of our products and do not own or operate any manufacturing
facilities. During fiscal 2004, we used a combination of agents, sourcing companies and factory-direct
relationships to source our products and used approximately 50 factories in 9 countries on an ongoing
basis.

We source our product manufacturing in a number of different countries. For fiscal 2004, our
largest source was Thailand, which produced 52% of the dollar value of products we ordered during
the year. We also used factories in other parts of Asia, Peru, India and Turkey. We do not have
long-term contracts with these factories, but place orders for specific quantities as needed. Because it
frequently takes time for factories to learn to meet our expectations, we place a high value on
long-term working relationships with these factories.

We also place a high value on social responsibility, and we have adopted SA8000, an international,
independently monitored code of conduct to help to ensure proper compliance with laws, regulations
and the protection of human rights. For fiscal 2004, 56% of the dollar value of our product came from
factories that meet the stringent SA8000 standards. We continue to encourage our suppliers to achieve
SA8000 certification.

We contract to purchase our goods in United States dollars, and we have not experienced material
difficulties as a result of foreign political, economic or social instability. However, we remain subject to
the risks associated with foreign suppliers, including without limitation, economic, political and health
risks. Because we import our products from factories overseas, we are also subject to quota restrictions
imposed by bilateral textile agreements between the United States and a number of foreign countries
which continue through December 31, 2004. These agreements were negotiated under the framework
established by the World Trade Organization (the “WTO”) regarding international trade in textiles.

Pursuant to the WTO agreements, effective January 1, 2005, the United States and other WTO
member countries are required, with few exceptions, to remove quotas on goods from WTO member
countries. The complete removal of quotas should benefit us by allowing us to source our products
without the necessity of factories having to purchase and obtain quotas. However, our business may be
negatively affected by the limited remaining quotas toward the end of calendar year 2004. If the




elimination of quotas result in import surges from certain countries, the possibility also exists that other
trade actions may be taken by the United States to prevent imports in injurious quantities, which may
adversely effect our ability to import product.

We may also experience delays in shipping from time to time, whether due to third-party strikes,
or otherwise. Delays in shipments and other factors beyond our control could materially harm our
relationships with our customers, our reputation in the industry and our business, financial condition
and operating results.

Sales and Marketing

We sell our products through distribution channels we believe will best reach our primary
consumer market. We have organized these selling efforts into Strategic Business Units (SBUs). These
SBUs are responsible for specific target markets. Within these target markets, they identify customers,
manage the customer relationship, sell the product, determine the quantities of inventory to order, and
manage the inventory. We have four major SBUs: Golf, Corporate, Specialty Retail, and International,
along with a small Consumer-direct SBU for our e-commerce business.

As part of the ongoing optimization of our organizational structure, in January 2004 we converted
41 of our sales representatives from employees to independent sales representatives. Before the
conversion, approximately half of our sales representatives were employees and half were independent.
After the conversion, virtually all of our sales representatives were independent.

Golf SBU. In fiscal 2004, the Golf SBU provided 31% of our net sales. At the end of fiscal 2004,
we had 32 sales representatives in the Golf SBU. We sold to more than 4,500 customers, most of whom
are green grass pro shops and some of whom are tournaments. We regulate our distribution in order to
enhance the long-term value of the brand. Most of our golf customers order their club or event logos
embroidered on the apparel they order. We provided embroidery on 69% of the items sold to golf
customers during fiscal 2004. Golf customers tend to order well before the seasonal collections arrive,
which enables us to adjust our production to early indications of demand. During the season, golf
customers may order additional quantities of seasonal or core products.

We provide golf marketing support through ads in golf trade and consumer magazines, and
catalogs which we provide to our customers. We also sponsor Annika Sorenstam, the leading woman
golfer, as well as Charlotta Sorenstam, Jerry Kelly, Pat Hurst, Mhairi McKay, Dave Stockton and Jeff
Gove. We renewed our sponsorship of Annika through 2006, and we launched our new women’s golf
collection inspired by Annika, the “Annika Collection by Cutter & Buck” for our Fall 2004 season,
which began shipping June 25, 2004.

Corporate SBU. In fiscal 2004, the Corporate SBU provided 42% of net sales. We have 28 sales
representatives in the Corporate SBU. These sales representatives sell through promotional products
distributors to major corporations. Our corporate customers tend to appreciate the association of their
own brands with the Cutter & Buck brand. Many of the garments we sell to corporate customers are
embroidered with the customer’s corporate logo. This embroidery is sometimes done by us, and
sometimes by the advertising specialist companies or other embroidery houses. In fiscal 2004, we
embroidered 12% of the items sold to corporate customers. Corporate customers tend to order at time
of need, so we carry inventories of the core styles which account for most of their orders. We also
maintain a web site where our corporate customers can see exactly what merchandise we have
available.

Marketing support for the Corporate SBU includes catalogs, direct mail pieces, web-based
initiatives, trade shows and seminars for the promotional products distributors. We believe that the
corporate channel also benefits from the brand awareness and esteem built in the Golf SBU, as many
corporate executives are also golfers.




Specialty Retail SBU. 1n fiscal 2004, the Specialty Retail SBU provided 18% of net sales. We have
33 sales representatives who sell to specialty retail stores, ranging from men’s and women’s upscale
clothing retailers, to big and tall stores and catalogs, to collegiate and pro sports team stores.
Customers include Nordstrom, Parisian, Von Mauer, Rochester Big and Tail and over 1,500 other
stores. Specialty Retail customers tend to place their major orders before the seasonal collections are
available for shipment, which allows us to adjust our production to early indications of demand.
Marketing support for our specialty retail customers varies, but tends to include point-of-purchase,
consumer promotions, catalogs showing our products and direct mail pieces.

We have concept shop partnerships with golf and specialty retail customers who meet higher order
requirements. These customers carry a large assortment of Cutter & Buck apparel, and we provide
additional merchandising and fixturing assistance to them.

International SBU. 1In fiscal 2004, our International SBU provided 2% of net sales, which are
royalties on products sold by licensees and distributors in various parts of the world. We have
transitioned the majority of our distributor relationships to licensee relationships.

We have a renewable contract to license our products in Europe with Eurostyle Ltd. We also have
renewable contracts with international distributors and licensees to sell our products in a number of
countries, including Australia, New Zealand, the Philippines, the United Arab Emirates, Saudi Arabia,
Bahrain, Qatar, Kuwait, Oman, South Africa, Singapore, Malaysia, Japan, Korea, Hong Kong, China
and Canada. These agreements range in terms from three to ten years. The products licensed from us
in these territories are generally identical to the products offered in the United States, and certain
licensees offer some products unique to their markets. Distributors and licensees often use our
marketing technique of offering the products in collections. These agreements enable us to broaden the
geographic distribution and type of products bearing the Cutter & Buck name in a cost-effective
manner.

Consumer Direct SBU. In addition to the four major SBUs above, we also have a small
e-commerce business, at www.cutterbuck.com. Our e-commerce site provides consumers with an
opportunity to order from a selection of our styles which may not be available to them in their local
market.

Order Fulfillment

Our order fulfillment group works to ensure that our customers receive exactly what they ordered,
with fine embroidery, on time. Our distribution center is located near the major Seattle airport and
about 20 miles from our corporate offices. We lease 170,500 square feet, which is used for our
embroidery functions as well as for processing orders.

Our distribution center is highly automated, using the PkMS warchouse management system. We
maintain a very reliable perpetual inventory system. We believe that our ability to efficiently process
large as well as relatively small orders is a competitive advantage. We also offer a number of value-
added services which allow our customers to sell our products without further processing. Value-added
services can include adding customer hang tags, folding products to specific measurements, or packing
orders to particular specifications.

After we have assembled the various items that form a customer’s order, we produce any
embroidery that is required. We provide a full range of embroidery services, including developing the
digital instructions for producing a specific logo, choosing the logo colors that best enhance the colors
of a garment and producing the embroidery. We have 226 embroidery heads, and during peak
embroidery production and shipping periods we have contracted with a number of independent
domestic embroiderers.




Information Systems

Our basic information processing is done by Paragon, an integrated, real-time system that is
specifically designed for the wholesale apparel industry. Information from Paragon populates a database
with a user-friendly interface, which enables managers throughout the company to get useful
information at many levels of detail. Other programs serve different needs, including: computer-aided
design software for design and product development; remote-order entry system for our sales force,
with daily inventory availability data; and a warehouse management system. We have also expanded our
electronic data interchange capabilities to meet the needs of our department store customers.

During fiscal 2004, we focused on improving information support for management decision
making, embroidery functions, and customer internet applications. During fiscal 2005, we plan to
upgrade and replace some of our computer systems. We expect the new systems to provide significantly
better management information, and support for our future operations.

Order Booking Cycle and Backlog

We typically receive our orders for a season over the period beginning when samples are first
shown to customers. We begin to take orders for our Fall collections in January, generally for delivery
between May and October and for our Spring collection in July, generally for delivery between
November and April. Our domestic backlog, which consists of open, unfilled customer orders from the
Golf, Corporate and Specialty Retail SBUs, was approximately $20.2 million as of April 30, 2004. We
expect to fill over 95% of backlog orders, and these orders are generally shipped within nine months.
For various reasons endemic to the apparel industry, including occasional sold-out inventory positions,
credit issues and other customer-related issues, we typically do not ship all of our backlog.

Competition

The sportswear segment of the apparel industry is highly competitive. Our two primary distribution
channels, golf pro shops and promotional products distributors, are highly fragmented. We encounter
substantial competition in all of our distribution channels from other apparel companies. We believe
that our ability to compete effectively is based primarily on product differentiation, product quality,
production flexibility, embroidery services, distribution capabilities, and value-added services provided
by our distribution center, all of which enhance our brand. Some of our competitors are significantly
larger and more diversified than we are and have substantially greater resources available for
developing and marketing their products. We cannot provide assurance that we will be able to maintain
or increase our market share in our distribution channels at the expense of existing competitors and
other apparel manufacturers choosing to enter those markets.

Trademarks

CUTTER & BUCK, the Cutter & Buck pennant logo and the Cutter & Buck tour logo are our
trademarks registered in the United States. CUTTER & BUCK is registered for use on apparel and
other products in over 50 countries, and the Cutter & Buck pennant logo and the Cutter & Buck tour
logo are similarly registered in over 30 countries. We have also applied to register these marks in a
number of other countries as well, and have applied to register the ANNIKA patch and the ANNIKA
logo in over 40 countries.

Employees

As of April 30, 2004, we had 376 full-time and 3 part-time employees in the United States, of
whom 37 were engaged in sales, 11 in production, 22 in merchandising and design, 36 in customer
service, 10 in credit, 7 in marketing, 138 in embroidery development and operations, 65 in distribution,



16 in information technology and 37 in administration and finance. None of our employees is a
member of a union. We consider our relations with our employees to be satisfactory.

Risk Factors

In addition to the other information in this report, including risks and uncertainties described
elsewhere, the following risk factors should be considered in evaluating us and our business. The risks
and uncertainties described below or elsewhere in this report are not the only ones we face. Additional
risks and uncertainties not presently known to us or that we currently deem immaterial also may impair
our business operations. If any of the risks described below or elsewhere in this report occur, our
business, financial condition, operating results and cash flows could be materially harmed.

We are searching for a successor to our CEO. On June 24, 2004, our CEQO, Fran Conley,
announced her intention to step down. On July 10, 2004, we entered into a Transition Agreement with
Ms. Conley, which provides for her to remain our Chairman and CEO and a member of our Board of
Directors until September 15, 2004. The Agreement also provides for Ms. Conley to remain an
employee through March 15, 2005. We are beginning a national search for a successor to our CEO.
Although the search will be coordinated by a professional search organization, we expect that it will
require an investment of senior management time and attention. We may be unable to identify and
retain a qualified successor to our CEO prior to her stepping down on September 15, 2004. If we are
unable to retain a qualified successor by that date, we may need to retain an interim CEO or
implement some alternative arrangement. In addition, the uncertainties raised by the length and results
of the search process may cause distractions in other areas of our business. Finally, we expect that we
will incur costs associated with the retention of a successor CEO, including potential cash and equity
compensation for that individual. These costs cannot be estimated at this time.

We expect to incur legal and other professional service costs. Former officers have made
indemnification claims against us related to their legal fees in connection with the SEC investigation.
The ultimate cost of such indemnification cannot currently be estimated nor can the extent to which
any costs will be covered by insurance. In addition, we will continue to incur legal fees as we pursue
our appeal against Genesis Insurance Company.

We may not be able to increase our sales. We experienced declining sales during the fiscal years
ended April 30, 2002, 2003 and 2004. Our management believes the decline in sales during fiscal year
2002 was attributable in part to poor economic conditions and the effect of our financial restatements.
In fiscal 2003 and fiscal 2004, the decline in sales was due in part to our strategy of intensively
managing our gross profit, which caused us to forgo some sales opportunities that would have
generated a lower gross profit. There can be no assurance that our strategies to increase sales by
focusing more closely on our target markets will be successful. If we are unable to increase our sales,
our business may be harmed.

We plan to upgrade and replace computer systems. In order to provide adequate management
information and support our future operations, we plan to upgrade and replace some of our computer
systems. The installation of new systems and upgrades of existing systems will require a significant
investment of employee time, as well as a significant capital investment. If we do not select systems that
adequately support our needs, are unable to successfully install the systems and integrate them into our
operations, or cannot complete the installations or upgrades within budget requirements, our business
may be materially harmed.

We rely on key employees. Because we position the Cutter & Buck brand to represent consistently
high quality, premium branded apparel coupled with superior customer service, we rely on key
employees in various areas of our operations. We also operate on a strict seasonal merchandise
calendar that includes personnel from our design, product development, production and sales groups. If




we were to experience the loss of key employees in the future without orderly succession, our business
may be harmed.

We rely on our trademarks and brand name. Because we position the Cutter & Buck brand to
represent consistently high quality, premium branded apparel available at select locations, maintaining
the integrity of the Cutter & Buck brand is essential to our business. We regard our name and logo as
valuable assets, and critical to marketing our products based on our brand image. Leading brands in
the apparel industry have historically been subject to competition from imitators that infringe the
trademarks and trade dress of the brand. Although we do not believe we have been materially harmed
by infringement of our trademarks or trade dress to date, we have experienced some instances of such
infringement and have taken actions to protect our rights. If we are unable to successfully defend the
integrity of our brand, our business may be materially harmed.

Item 2. Properties

We lease our principal executive offices, which are located in Seattle, Washington, under a lease
that covers 44,670 square feet and expires in July 2010. We lease 405,000 square feet of space for a
distribution center and embroidery production facility in Renton, Washington under a lease that expires
in November 2011. We lease approximately 2,963 square feet of space for a showroom in New York,
New York.

During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2002 and the first quarter of fiscal 2003, we decided to abandon
234,500 square feet of warehouse space at our distribution center. Between January 23, 2002 and
September 10, 2002, we entered into three subleases that, in total, cover the entire abandoned
warehouse space.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

As previously disclosed, we remain a party to our lawsuit against Genesis Insurance Company. Our
complaint, which was originally filed in the United States District Court for the Western District of
Washington, alleged that Genesis’ 2002 attempt to rescind our primary Directors’ and Officers’ liability
insurance was unlawful, and sought damages resulting from Genesis’ breach of contract and the duty of
good faith and fair dealing. On February 11, 2004, the Court entered an Order granting Genesis’
motions for summary judgment and, accordingly, our claims against Genesis were dismissed on
February 13, 2004, On March 1, 2004 we filed a motion asking the Court to alter its decision and
vacate this judgment, and on March 11, 2004 we filed a notice of appeal of the Court’s decision to the
Ninth Circuit Court of Appeals. On April 21, 2004, the Circuit Mediator for the Ninth Circuit Court of
Appeals entered an Order staying our Appeal, pending the outcome of our motion to alter the trial
Court’s decision and vacate the judgment. On May 25, 2004, the United States District Court for the
Western District of Washington entered an order denying our motion to alter the earlier decision.
Accordingly, we are proceeding with our appeal.

We are also party to other routine litigation incidental to our business. Management believes the
ultimate resolution of these other routine matters will not have a material adverse effect on our
financial condition and results of operations.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

Not Applicable.




PART 11

Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Shareholder Matters and Issuer Purchases
of Equity Securities

Our common stock is listed on the NASDAQ National Market under the symbol “CBUK.” The
following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, the high and low closing prices of the common
stock as reported on the NASDAQ National Market.

Fiscal 2004 _High — Low
Quarter:
0 ] $ 574 $345
oYL+ 115 $ 8.03 $4.74
0 ) 111 $ 981 $731
011 2 $11.00 $9.50
Fiscal 2003 High ~ Low
Quarter:
FarSt o o e, $7.10 $4.25
Second ... e $4.34  $2.90
Third .. e $4.60 $3.51
Fourth . ... $4.00 $2.95

As of July 9, 2004, there were approximately 3,780 holders of record of our common stock., Many
of our shares are held in “street name” and the number of holders of record may not represent the
actual number of shareholders.

Sales of Unregistered Securities

On October 16, 2002, pursuant to the exemption provided in Section 4(2) of the Securities Act, the
Company granted options to purchase an aggregate of 7,500 shares of Company common stock to two
consultants. The options were exercisable at a price of $3.92 per share, which was the closing price of
the Company’s common stock on the date of grant, and carried a ten-year term.

On November 15, 2002, pursuant to the exemption provided in Section 4(2) of the Securities Act,
the Company granted options to purchase an aggregate of 66,000 shares of Company common stock to
two newly hired executives. The options carried an exercise price of $3.67 per share, which was the
closing price of the Company’s common stock on the date of the grant. Each option was generally
exercisable for a period of 10 vears, subject to earlier termination in the event of a change in the
executive’s employment with the Company. On January 28, 2003, the Company accepted the resignation
of one of these executives and, as a result, that executive’s option to purchase 36,000 shares of the
Company’s common stock expired on January 28, 2003.

On June 16, 2003, pursuant to the exemption provided in Section 4(2) of the Securities Act, the
Company granted an option to purchase 30,000 shares of the Company’s common stock to a newly
hired executive. This option is exercisable at a price of $4.55 per share, which was the closing price of
the Company’s common stock on the date of grant. The option is generally exercisable for a period of
10 years, unless earlier terminated as a result of a change in the executive’s employment with the
Company.

On September 8, 2003, pursuant to the exemption provided in Section 4(2) of the Securities Act,
the Company granted an option to purchase 30,000 shares of the Company’s common stock to a newly



hired executive. This option is exercisable at a price of $6.83 per share, which was the closing price of
the Company’s common stock on the date of grant. The option is generally exercisable for a period of
10 years, unless earlier terminated as a result of a change in the executive’s employment with the
Company.

On March 9, 2004, pursuant to the exemption provided in Section 4(2) of the Securities Act, the
Company sold 2,500 shares of Company common stock for cash at a price of $3.92 per share upon the
exercise of an option granted to a consultant on October 16, 2002.

Dividends

On March 15, 2004 the Board announced a dividend of $0.05 per share of common stock. The
dividend was paid on April 9 to holders of record on March 26. On June 24, 2004 the Board
announced a dividend of $0.05 per share of common stock. The dividend is payable on July 16 to
holders of record on July 8. We had not previously declared or paid any cash dividend on our common
stock.

Equity Compensation Plans
The following table sets forth our equity compensation plan information:

Number of securities
remaining available for

Number of securities future issnance under
to be issued upon Weighted-average equity compensation
exercise of exercise price of plans (excluding
outstanding options, outstanding options, securities reflected
warrants and rights warrants and rights in column (a))
Plan category (a) (b) (c)
Equity compensation plans approved by
security holders. . . . ............. ... 1,376,163 $6.55 411,513
Equity compensation plans not approved by
security holders. . . ................. 95,000 4.96 —
Total ......... . . 1,471,163 $6.45 411,513

Stock Repurchase Program

On March 15, 2004 the Board announced a stock repurchase program, allowing for the repurchase
of up to $6 million of common stock. The program may be suspended at any time without notice, and
does not have an expiration date.

The following table sets forth our purchases of our common stock for the fiscal quarter ended
April 30, 2004:

Maximum Number (or
Total Number of Approximate Dollar

Shares (or Units) Value) of Shares (or
Total Number Average Purchased as Part Units) that May Yet
of Shares Price Paid of Publicly Be Purchased Under
(or Units) per Share Announced Plans the Plans or
Purchased (or Unit) or Programs Programs
Period (a) 1] (c) (d)
February 1, 2004 to February 29, 2004 . . . .. — $ — — $ —
March 1, 2004 to March 31,2004 ........ 17,200 10.14 17,200 5,825,558
April 1, 2004 to April 30,2004 . .. .. ..... 39,626 10.24 39,626 5,419,807
Total . .. ... 56,826 $10.21 56,826 $5,419,807




Item 6. Selected Financial Data

Year Ended April 30, 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000
(in thousands, except share and per share amounts)
Netsales . ... oo e $ 128374 $ 131,699 § 161,113 § 172,853 § 145491
Costofsales. .. ..... .. ... ... .. L, 69,784 76,912 106,189 104,134 82,802
Gross profit . ... ... .. 58,590 54,787 54,924 68,719 62,689
Operating expenses:
Depreciation . .. ... ... . i 3,988 5,109 5,423 4,340 3,546
Selling, general and administrative . . ............ 41,376 42,400 52,350 53,429 45,024
Restructuring and asset impairment. . . ... .. ... ... (349) 3,806 5,524 — —
Restatement €Xpernses . ... ... ..ot 4,968 8,169 — — —
Total operating expenses . ... ............... 49,983 59,484 63,297 57,769 48,570
Operating income (loss) .. .................... 8,607 (4,697) (8,373) 10,950 14,119
Interest income (expense)
Interest expense . . . .. ... . . (155) (627) (1,731) (1,354) (1,039)
Interest inCOME . . . . ... oo it e 277 241 132 98 579
Net interest income (expense) . . . .. ........... 122 (386) (1,599) (1,256) (460)
Income (loss) from continuing operations before income
TAXES ¢ v o vt e e e s 8,729 (5,083) (9.972) 9,694 13,659
Income tax expense (benefit) . ............. e 944 (65) (2,945) 3,684 5,035
Income (loss) from continuing operations . .......... 7,785 (5,018) (7,027) 6,010 8,624
Income (loss) from discontinued retail operations, net of
BAX . o e 146 (6,980) (3,346) (538) (431)
Netincome (loss) .. ....... ... . .. ... $ 7931 § (11,998) $ (10,373) § 5472 8 8,193

Basic earnings (loss) per share:

Earnings (loss) from continuing operations. . . . ... .. .. $ 073 § 047) $ (0.66) $ 057 3§ 0.87

Earnings (loss) from discontinued retail operations . . . . . $ 001 $ 0.66) $ 032) $ (0.05) $ (0.04)
Net earnings (1088) . . . .« o i i e i $ 074 $ (113) $  (098) 3 052§ 0.83

Diluted earnings (loss) per share:

Earnings (loss) from continuing operations. . . . . . ... .. $ 070 % (047) $ (0.66) $ 057 § 0.86

Earnings (loss) from discontinued retail operations . . . .. 3 001 % (0.66) $ (032) § (0.05) $ (0.04)
Net earnings (loss) . . . ... .. . $ 071 $ (1.13) § (098) $ 052 § 0.82

Shares used in computation of:

Basic earnings (loss) pershare .................. 10,705 10,615 10,570 10,448 9,839

Diluted earnings (loss) pershare . . ... ............ 11,162 10,615 10,570 10,526 10,021

April 30, 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000

(in thousands, except dividends per share)

Consolidated Balance Sheets Data:

Cash and cash equivalents ................. $19,715 $18,864 $ 6,989 § 8,072 $ 7,367

Working capital . . ....... . ... . . L. 75,080 65,622 71,924 78,475 74,415

Total assets . ... ...t 93,930 95,678 106,769 142,567 115,082

Short-term debt and capital lease obligations. . . . 557 1,732 3,213 21,469 4,455

Long-term debt and capital lease obligations . . . . 111 702 3,716 10,346 6,545

Total shareholder’sequity. .. ............... $79,729 $71,988 $ 83,394 § 92,349 § 86,221

Cash dividends declared per common share .... $ 005 § — § — $ — 3 —
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Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

You should read this section together with “Selected Financial Data” and our consolidated
financial statements and related notes thereto included elsewhere in this report. In addition to the
historical information contained herein, this report contains forward-looking statements that involve
risks and uncertainties. Forward-looking statements typically are identified by the use of such terms as
“may,” “will,” “expect,” “believe,” “anticipate,” “estimate,” “plan” and similar words, although some
forward- looking statements are expressed differently. You should be aware that our actual growth and
results couid differ materially from those contained in the forward-looking statements due to a number
of factors, which include, but are not limited to the following: the special risk factors set forth in Part I,
Item 1 above, the risks and uncertainties set forth below: relations with and performance of suppliers;
our ability to control costs and expenses including costs associated with the upgrade and replacement of
some of our computer systems and costs associated with regulatory compliance, carry out successful
designs, effectively advertise and communicate with the marketplace and penetrate our chosen
distribution channels; costs associated with the indemnification of former officers; competition; access
to capital; risks related to the timely performance of third parties, such as shipping companies,
including risks of strikes or labor disputes involving these third parties; maintaining the integrity of our
technology and information systems while enhancing and changing systems; attracting and retaining
senior executives and employees during our current management transition; maintaining satisfactory
relationships with our banking partners; political and trade relations; changes in international trade
quota systems for apparel; the overall level of consumer spending on apparel; global economic and
political conditions and additional threatened terrorist attacks and responses thereto, including war.
Additional information on these and other factors that could affect our financial results is set forth
below and in Part I, Item 1 above. Finally, there may be other factors not mentioned above or included
elsewhere in this report that may cause actual results to differ materially from any forward-looking
information. You should not place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements. We assume no
obligation to update any forward-looking statements as a result of new information, future events or
developments, except as required by the securities laws.

33 &

All references to fiscal years are references to our fiscal year ended April 30.

Overview

Cutter & Buck designs, sources, markets and distributes high-quality men’s and women’s
sportswear under the Cutter & Buck brand. We sell our products primarily through golf pro shops and
resorts, corporate accounts, upscale specialty retail stores, and international distributors and licensees.

During fiscal 2003 and the first half of fiscal 2004, our strategy focused on managing our gross
profit and the profitability of our core wholesale business. Because we have positioned the Cutter &
Buck brand to represent a superior product available at select locations, we have foregone some sales
opportunities that would have generated a lower gross profit.

Our sales have also been affected by the difficult economic conditions faced by customers in our
target markets. During most of our fiscal year, the number of golf rounds played were down, corporate
spending on marketing and events was curtailed, and specialty retailers faced declining sales. We have
recently seen some growth in the specialty retail and corporate markets as the economy begins to
improve and we focus our products more closely on our target markets. We believe our brand is strong
and we are well positioned within these markets, and as the economic turnaround becomes more
widespread we are in a good position to grow our brand.

As part of the ongoing optimization of our organizational structure, in January 2004 we converted
41 of our sales representatives from employees to independent sales representatives. Before the
conversion, approximately half of our sales representatives were employees and half were independent.
After the conversion, virtually all of our sales representatives are independent. This conversion was
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structured to have no impact on selling expenses or customer service. Since the conversion was
completed, we have not experienced any significant impact on turnover or selling expenses.

During fiscal 2003, we restructured our business to focus our efforts on our wholesale business and
reduce our operating costs. To understand the performance of our wholesale business, management
considers it useful to review our operating results excluding costs that are not elements of running our
wholesale business on an ongoing basis, such as restructuring and restatement expenses and costs
related to our former retail store and European operations. We adjust our net income calculated in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles to exclude income and expense items that are
not directly related to our wholesale business, in order to give us better information regarding the
profitability of our wholesale business. We use this analysis to compare pretax wholesale business
income on a quarterly and year-to-date basis.

Year Ended April 30, 2004 2003 2002

(in thousands)

Net income (loss) as reported. . ... ...ttt $ 7,931 $(11,998) $(10,373)
(Income) loss from discontinued retail operations ................ (146) 6,980 3,346
Income tax expense (benefit) ..... ... ... ... ... .. .. . ... 944 (65)  (2,945)
Pre-tax (income) expense of closed European operations ... ........ 13 (376) 2,538
Restructuring and asset impairment €Xpenses . .................. (349) 3,806 5,524
Restatement eXpenses .. ... . ... 4,968 8,169 —
Ongoing wholesale business income before tax .................. $13361 $§ 6,516 $ (1,910)

We are now focusing on strengthening the upscale positioning of the Cutter & Buck brand, and
refining the execution of all of our business processes to enable the highest level of customer
satisfaction. The goal of this strategy is to increase net sales while maintaining our gross profit. We are
focusing on the needs of our customers within each strategic business unit, and updating our styles and
adding products to meet those needs. This is a long-term strategy to grow our business and, due in part
to the long product lead times in this industry, we remain relatively cautious about sales for the next six
months in relation to last year. In addition, we are currently searching for a successor to our CEO.
Once retained, that individual will be responsible for helping the Board position our brand in the
market and chart the Company’s strategic direction, which may result in some change in our current
brand positioning and strategy.

In order to reach these goals, we are investing in design talent and market research, and the
development of management information systems to improve our processes and continue our
commitment to customer service. We plan to upgrade and replace some of our computer systems, and
we expect the new systems to provide significantly improved management information and support for
our future operations. We will also invest in marketing to expand our brand awareness within our SBU
target markets. We expect these investments in our business to result in increased expenses in these
areas over the next fiscal year. However, we expect these increases in expenses to ultimately be offset
by increases in sales and improvements in operating efficiencies.
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Results of Operations

The following table sets forth, for the fiscal years indicated, certain consolidated statements of
operations data expressed as a percentage of net sales. For all periods presented in this section, results
of operations reflect the classification of our Company-owned retail store operating results and loss on
disposal of these stores as discontinued retail operations.

Year Ended April 30, 2004 2003 2002

Consolidated Statements of Operations Data:
Net sales . oo e 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
Costofsales ........ .. . 544 584 659
Gross Profit . . ..o 456 416 341
Operating expenses: ‘

Depreciation. . . ..o e 3.1 39 34

Selling, general and administrative . ... ...... ... ... ... ... .. . ... 322 322 325

Restructuring and asset impairment . .. ........... . ... (03) 29 34

Restatement eXpenses . .. .ot e e 39 6.2 —

Total operating exXpenses . ... ....... ... i 389 452 393

Operating income (10SS) . . . . ..ttt 6.7 (3.6) (52
Interest income (expense)

INerest EXPense . . .. ..t e (0.1) (0.5 (@1.1)

Interest INCOME . . . .. ..ot e e 0.2 0.2 0.1

Net interest inCOME (EXPENSE) . . v v v v vt e vttt e e e e n 01 (03 (1.0

Income (loss) from continuing operations before income taxes .. ........... 68 (39 (6.2
Income tax expense (benefit) ................. e 0.7 — (1.8
Income (loss) from continuing operations . .................... ... ..., 6.1 (39 44
Income (loss) from discontinued retail operations, net of tax .............. 0.1 (53 (21
Net income (JOSS) . ¢ v vttt e e e e 6.2% (9.2)% (6.5)%

Year Ended April 30, 2004 Compared to the Year Ended April 30, 2003
Net Sales

During fiscal 2004 net sales decreased approximately $3.3 million or 2.5% to $128.4 million.
During fiscal 2004, we focused on improving our gross profit. Because we have foregone some sales
opportunities with lower gross profits, our net sales have decreased compared to fiscal 2003 although
our gross profit has increased over the same period. The detail of net sales by SBU was as follows:

Increase/ Percent

Year Ended April 30, 2004 2003 (Decrease) Change
(in millions, except percent change)
GOIE .+ e e $397 $427 $(30)  (7.0)%
COTPOTALE . . . oottt e e 539 54.6 0.7) (1.2)
Specialty Retail . .. ... .. 0. 225 22.2 0.3 1.5
International . . .. ... ... ... . 2.7 4.1 14y (351
Other . ... . 9.6 8.1 1.5 18.0
TOtAl © oot e $1284 $1317  $(33)  (25)%

During fiscal year 2004, net sales within our Golf SBU decreased by $3.0 million to $39.7 million
from $42.7 million in the prior year. Net sales in our Golf SBU were impacted by a slower economic
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recovery in the high-end golf apparel segment. Our sales were also impacted as we hired and trained
sales representatives who were new to the Cutter & Buck brand. Net sales within our Corporate SBU
decreased $0.7 million to $53.9 million from $54.6 million in the prior year. Our Corporate sales were
affected in fiscal 2004 by cautious corporate spending on marketing programs, changes in the cycle of
new product releases and discontinuation of some designs. In January 2004, we launched a new
corporate catalog featuring new designs, which has had a positive impact on sales. Our net sales in this
SBU increased 12.4% in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2004 compared to the fourth quarter of fiscal 2003,
and we expect sales in this SBU to continue to show improvement as corporate customers begin
increasing spending on marketing programs. Net sales within our Specialty Retail SBU increased

$0.3 million to $22.5 million from $22.2 million in the prior year. This increase was primarily due to the
success of our collegiate and pro sports sales programs. Net sales within our International SBU
decreased approximately $1.4 million to $2.7 million from $4.1 million in the prior year. Net sales
within this SBU decreased as we continued to shift from distributor relationships to licensee
relationships during fiscal 2004. In addition, for fiscal 2003 net sales in our International SBU included
approximately $0.7 million in revenue generated by selling inventory to Eurostyle Ltd. in conjunction
with establishing a licensing relationship with them. Net sales within our Other SBU, including
liquidation sales, shipping revenue and our e-commerce business, increased $1.5 million to $9.6 million
from $8.1 million in the prior year, primarily due to increases in our e-commerce business and
liquidation sales.

Gross Profit

In fiscal 2004, our gross profit was 45.6% of net sales, compared to 41.6% in fiscal 2003. Our
margins have increased as we focused on reducing our product returns and allowances, improved our
sourcing, adjusted our pricing structure for certain products and reduced discounting. Our product
returns and allowances decreased significantly during fiscal 2004 due to intensive management. As a
result, we updated the estimates we use to calculate the reserve for product returns and allowances.
These updated estimates resulted in a reduction of charges to product returns and allowances of
$1.2 million. We also realized a reduction of approximately $1.0 million in our inbound freight and
import costs.

Our gross profit may not be comparable to other companies, since some companies include all
costs related to their distribution network in the cost of sales. We have consistently included inbound
freight charges in cost of sales, and included other costs of distribution in selling, general and
administrative expenses.

Depreciation

Depreciation expense was $4.0 million in fiscal 2004 compared to $5.1 million in fiscal 2003.
Depreciation expense decreased during fiscal 2004 primarily due to investments in our inventory
management systems becoming fully depreciated, the disposal of assets no longer used in our
operations and phasing out investments in sales fixturing. This decrease was partially offset by an
increase in depreciation expense related to new capital expenditures.

Selling, General and Administrative

Selling, general and administrative expenses totaled $41.4 million in fiscal 2004 compared to
$42.4 million in 2003, a decrease of $1.0 million or 2.4%, and was unchanged as a percentage of net
sales at 32.2% in fiscal 2004 and fiscal 2003. Salaries, sales commissions and related taxes decreased by
approximately $1.8 million due to a decrease in sales, savings resulting from our restructuring plans and
internal cost-cutting measures. This decrease was offset by an increase in benefits, incentive bonuses
and other employee expenses of $2.0 million. Sample expenses decreased approximately $0.9 million,
and supply and printing expenses decreased approximately $0.3 million, primarily due to internal
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cost-cutting measures and lower sales levels. Rent expense decreased by approximately $0.3 million
primarily due to closing two showrooms and consolidating operations at our corporate headquarters
and distribution center. Bad debt expense decreased approximately $0.4 million primarily due to
increased management of credit exposures. These decreases were partially offset by increases of
approximately $0.5 million in legal and other professional fees and $0.3 million in advertising expenses.

During fiscal 2005, we plan to invest in design talent, marketing initiatives, and management
information systems. We expect these investments in our business to result in increased expenses in
these areas. However, we expect these increases to ultimately be offset by increases in sales and
improvements in operating efficiencies. We also expect to incur additional costs to comply with
requirements of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Restructuring and Asset Impairment

We have two restructuring plans, the 2002 Restructuring Plan and the 2003 Restructuring Plan.
The 2002 Restructuring Plan included closing our wholly-owned European subsidiary, refining our
Company-owned retail store strategy, closing four under-performing Company-owned retail stores,
consolidating and restructuring our women’s line sales force, discontinuing our golf shoe business,
discontinuing the dressier side of our women’s line, recording losses on subleases of excess warehouse
capacity and certain management changes. The 2003 Restructuring Plan covered the closure of the
remaining ten retail stores.

Costs associated with the 2002 Restructuring Plan, excluding costs associated with refining our
retail strategy and closing our retail stores, are included in Restructuring and Asset Impairment
expenses. Costs associated. with the 2003 Restructuring Plan and the costs associated with refining our
retail strategy and closing our retail stores included in the 2002 Restructuring Plan are included in
Discontinued Retail Operations.

We had a $0.3 million reversal of previously recognized restructuring and asset impairment
expenses for fiscal 2004, compared to expenses of $3.8 million in fiscal 2003. The $0.3 million reduction
in expenses primarily related to reserve adjustments for accounts receivable from former officers, which
have now been settled. Our restructuring plans are now complete. The remaining liability recorded for
the 2002 Restructuring Plan relates to the sublease of our excess warehouse capacity at our distribution
center,and will be amortized through the end of the lease term in 2011. In fiscal 2003, the $3.8 million
in expenses consisted of $3.3 million related to losses on subleases of our excess warehouse capacity at
our distribution center and $0.5 million related to additional reserves against accounts receivable
balances with former officers.

Restatement Expenses

In fiscal 2002, we restated certain of our historical financial statements for irregularities and errors.
As a result of the circumstances underlying the restatement, three shareholder class action lawsuits and
a shareholder derivative lawsuit were filed, naming us and certain of our current and former directors
and officers as defendants. We settled those lawsuits and paid $4 million to the plaintiffs. We also
settled the previously announced Securities and Exchange Commission investigation of the Company
arising from the circumstances underlying the restatement. That settlement did not require payment of
any fines or penalties.

Restatement expenses totaled approximately $5.0 million for the year ended April 30, 2004 and
included $3.5 million of legal and professional fees, of which $0.9 million we have advanced in
connection with the indemnification of former officers, $1.2 million of accrued retention bonuses to
certain key employees and $0.2 million of amortization of the premium for the replacement directors’
and officers’ liability insurance. Retention bonuses totaled $1.9 million, the majority of which was paid
out in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2004. Although the restatement has been completed, we expect to
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continue to incur legal and other professional service costs in connection with the indemnification of
former officers and the appeal of our lawsuit against Genesis Insurance Company. These expenses
cannot be estimated at this time.

Operating Income (Loss)

As a result of the above items, operating income was $8.6 million in fiscal 2004 compared to an
operating loss of $4.7 million in fiscal 2003.

Income Taxes

We recorded approximately $0.9 million of income tax expense in fiscal 2004 compared to $65,000
of income tax benefit in fiscal 2003. The effective rates for income taxes in fiscal 2004 and 2003 were
10.8% and 1%, respectively. In fiscal 2003 we established a valuation allowance against our deferred tax
assets. Based on the level of our historical taxable income and forecasts for future taxable income over
the periods in which the temporary differences were anticipated to reverse, management believed at
that time it was more likely than not that we would be unable to realize the full benefit of our deferred
tax assets. Considering the fiscal 2004 results and forecasts for future taxable income, management
determined that it is now more likely than not that we will realize the benefit of these assets.
Therefore, in fiscal 2004 we reversed the allowance of $1.2 million. In addition, income tax expense for
the year was reduced by $0.9 million related to the reconciliation of the tax provision to the income tax
return as filed for fiscal 2003 and changes in estimates of our income tax liabilities. We will periodically
review the necessity for an allowance as taxable income is generated or there are changes in our
estimates of future taxable income and the expected realization of deferred tax assets.

Year Ended April 30, 2003 Compared to the Year Ended April 30, 2002
Net Sales

During fiscal 2003 net sales decreased approximately $29.4 million or 18.2% to $131.7 million. The
detail of net sales by SBU was as follows:

Increase/ Percent

Year Ended April 30, 2003 2002 (Decrease)  Change
(in millions, except percent change)
GOI v e e e e e $ 427 $486 $ (59 (121)%
Corporate . . ... .. 54.6 56.1 (1.5) (2.7)
Specialty Retail . ... ...... ... . 222 23.3 (1.1) 4.7)
International . . . ... .. 4.1 9.6 (58.5) (57.3)
Other . . . e 8.1 235 (15.4) (65.5)
Jotal ... e e $131.7 $161.1 $(29.4) (18.2)%

Some of the decline in sales in each SBU may have been attributable to customers’ fears about
our stability after the announcement of the need to restate earnings. During fiscal year 2003, net sales
within our Golf SBU decreased by $5.9 million to $42.7 million from $48.6 million in the prior year.
Net sales within our Golf SBU continued to be negatively impacted by the economy and flat demand
due to an oversupply of product in the golf marketplace and a decrease in the number of rounds
played. Net sales within our Corporate SBU decreased $1.5 million to $54.6 million from $56.1 million
in the prior year as corporate customers spent less on marketing programs. During the first quarter of
fiscal 2003 we launched a new corporate catalog that had a positive impact on sales in the remainder of
fiscal 2003. Net sales within our Specialty Retail SBU decreased $1.1 million to $22.2 million from
$23.3 million in the prior year. Specialty retail sales decreased as a result of the discontinuation of our
dressier women’s line and the difficult conditions facing independent specialty stores. Net sales within
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our International SBU decreased by approximately $5.5 million to $4.1 million from $9.6 million in the
prior year. For fiscal 2002, net sales within our International SBU included approximately $6.1 million
in sales generated by our European subsidiary. This subsidiary was closed and substantially liquidated
at the end of fiscal 2002. As a result, net sales for fiscal year 2003 did not include any direct European
sales. Our European operations were replaced with a licensing relationship with Eurostyle Ltd.
(Eurostyle) effective May 1, 2002. Because we no longer sell directly in Europe, we generate licensing
revenues, instead of direct sales, on all sales of our products in that market. These licensing revenues
are calculated as a percentage of net sales of our products by Eurostyle. The decrease in sales resulting
from closing our European operations was partially offset by an increase in licensing and royalty
income. Net sales within our Other SBU include liquidation sales and shipping revenue, and decreased
$15.4 million to $8.1 million from $23.5 million in the prior year. This decrease was primarily due to
lower liquidation sales in fiscal 2003 compared to fiscal 2002.

Gross Profit

In fiscal 2003, our gross profit was 41.6% of net sales, compared to 34.1% in fiscal 2002. In fiscal
2002, our gross profit was impacted by inventory write-downs, lower margins on liquidation sales and
higher off-price discounts. Inventory write-downs were recorded as part of our 2002 Restructuring Plan,
which included closure of our European operations and exiting the dressier side of our women’s line
and our golf shoe business.

Our gross profit may not be comparable to other companies, since some companies include all
costs related to their distribution network in the cost of sales. We have consistently included inbound
freight charges in cost of sales, and included other costs of distribution in selling, general and
administrative expenses.

Depreciation

Depreciation expense was $5.1 million in fiscal 2003 compared to $5.4 million in fiscal 2002.
Depreciation expense decreased during fiscal 2003 due to the disposal of assets used in our European
operations and certain assets used at our previous corporate headquarters. This decrease was partially
offset by an increase in depreciation expense related to new capital expenditures.

Selling, General and Administrative

Selling, general and administrative expenses totaled $42.4 million in fiscal 2003 compared to
$52.4 million in 2002, a decrease of $10 million, or 19%, and decreased as a percentage of net sales to
32.2% in fiscal 2003 from 32.5% in fiscal 2002. Approximately $2.5 million of this decrease related to
the closure of our European operations. Salaries, sales commissions and related taxes and benefits
decreased by approximately $4 million due to lower sales levels and savings resulting from our
restructuring plans. Rent expense decreased by approximately $0.6 million primarily due to subleasing
abandoned warehouse space. Marketing expenses decreased by approximately $1.0 million, sample
expenses decreased by approximately $1.0 million, training and supply costs decreased by approximately
$0.4 million, travel expenses decreased by approximately $0.4 million, sales meeting and tradeshow
costs decreased by approximately $0.3 million and business taxes decreased approximately $0.3 million
primarily due to internal cost-cutting measures and lower sales levels. Bad debt expense decreased
approximately $0.4 million primarily due to increased management of credit exposures. These decreases
were partially offset by increases of approximately $0.7 million in insurance expense and approximately
$0.9 million in legal and other professional fees.
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Restructuring and Asset Impairment

Restructuring and asset impairment expenses were $3.8 million for fiscal 2003 compared to
$5.5 million in fiscal 2002. Of the $3.8 million recorded in fiscal 2003, $3.3 million related to losses on
subleases of our excess warehouse capacity at our distribution center and $0.5 million related to
additional reserves against accounts receivable balances with former officers. The $5.5 million in
expenses for fiscal 2002 consisted of $2.9 million related to the closure of our European operations,
$1.4 million related to the consolidation and restructuring of our women’s line sales force, $0.4 million
related to the discontinuation of our golf shoe business as well as the dressier side of the women’s
business, $0.4 million related to the transitions of both our former Chief Executive Officer and our
former President, $0.3 million related to the abandonment of excess warehouse capacity and
$0.1 million related to other restructuring costs.

Restatement Expenses

We restated certain of our historical financial statements for irregularities and errors in fiscal 2002.
As a result of the restatement, three shareholder class action lawsuits and a shareholder derivative
lawsuit were filed, naming us and certain of our current and former directors and officers as
defendants. During fiscal 2003 we reached an agreement to settle these lawsuits, including our
agreement to pay $4 million in cash plus up to an additional $3 million based on a formula applied to
any recovery in our ongoing suit against Genesis Insurance Company.

Restatement expenses totaled approximately $8.2 million for the year ended April 30, 2003 and
included the $4 million settlement charge, $2.8 million of legal and professional fees, $0.9 million of
accrued retention bonuses to certain key employees and $0.5 million of amortization of the premium
for the replacement directors’ and officers’ liability insurance and other restatement costs. Although the
restatement has been completed, we will continue to incur legal and other professional service costs in
connection with the indemnification of former officers and the ongoing lawsuit against Genesis
Insurance Company. These expenses cannot be estimated at this time. In addition, there will be an
ongoing charge each quarter until March 2004 for the retention bonus, which aggregated to
$1.9 million paid in March 2004.

Operating Income (Loss)

As a result of the above items, operating loss decreased $3.7 million, or 43.9%, to $4.7 million in
fiscal 2003 compared to $8.4 million in fiscal 2002.

Income Taxes

We recorded approximately $65,000 of income tax benefit in fiscal 2003 compared to $2.9 million
in fiscal 2002. The effective rates for income taxes in fiscal 2003 and 2002 were 1% and 29.5%,
respectively. This decrease in our fiscal 2003 effective rate resulted from the establishment of a
valuation allowance against our deferred income tax assets and non-deductible restructuring and asset
impairment expenses.

Loss from Discontinued Retail Operations, net of tax

During fiscal 2003, our Board of Directors determined that we should focus our resources on our
wholesale business and close our retail stores. Although the retail stores provided a showcase for our
product lines, the operation of the stores did not provide a satisfactory financial return. All stores were
closed as of April 30, 2003. The fiscal 2003 loss from discontinued retail operations, net of tax, was
$7.0 million compared to $3.3 million in fiscal 2002. The loss from discontinued retail operations in
2003 includes retail store closure expenses of $9.2 million pretax ($6.9 million net of tax). Retail store
closure costs in 2003 include both the costs associated with the 2003 Restructuring Plan ($8.4 million
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pretax) and the costs associated with refining our retail strategy and closing our retail stores included in
the 2002 Restructuring Plan ($0.8 million pretax). The 2003 Restructuring Plan expense included lease
termination costs, termination and severance benefits to be paid as a result of the involuntary
termination of 88 employees at our retail stores and corporate retail division, the write-down of other
current assets, furniture and equipment and deferred rent to net realizable value and other costs
resulting from the closure of the ten additional retail stores. The 2002 Restructuring Plan charge of
$0.8 million pretax related to additional closure costs, primarily termination of lease obligations, on the
four stores identified for closure during fiscal 2002.

Also included in fiscal 2003 loss from discontinued retail operations is a $3.7 million fee paid to
Hilco Merchant Resources, LLC (Hilco) in connection with the decision to close the retail stores. We
entered into an agreement with Hilco to act as our agent for conducting the liquidation of store
inventories and to assist with negotiations for termination of the store leases. As a guaranty of Hilco’s
performance we receive a guaranteed payment of 31.2% of the aggregate retail price of the inventory
being liquidated. As compensation for its services, Hilco received a base fee of up to 2.5% of the retail
price of the liquidation inventory plus all expenses incurred in connection with the liquidation event,
including store level operating expenses. To the extent the proceeds from the liquidation sales exceeded
the sum of the guaranteed payment plus all liquidation expenses and Hilco’s base fee, such excess
proceeds were split 80% to us and 20% to Hilco. As of April 30, 2003, the guaranteed payment totaled
approximately $4.7 million and Hilco’s fees totaled approximately $3.7 million. The $3.7 million was
recorded in the discontinued retail operations results and included Hilco’s base fees, reimbursable
expenses incurred by Hilco and certain store level operating expenses paid for by Hilco under the
terms of the agreement.

The loss from discontinued retail operations in 2002 included store closure costs of $2.2 million
pretax ($1.4 million after tax) under the 2002 Restructuring Plan. The $2.2 million pretax expense
resulted from fixed asset write-downs and lease termination costs related to the four stores identified
for closure.

Quarterly Results and Seasonality

Our business is seasonal, and this seasonality is primarily attributable to delivery dates of our
Spring and Fall lines and to the timing of shipments to golf pro shops and specialty retail stores. Other
factors contributing to the variability of our quarterly results include seasonal fluctuations in consumer
demand, the timing and amount of orders from key customers, the timing and magnitude of sales of
seasonal remainder merchandise and availability of product. This pattern of sales creates seasonal
fluctuations in profitability, working capital financing and liquidity levels. We generally experience our
lowest level of net sales in the third quarter, and the highest level of net sales in the fourth quarter.
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The following tables set forth certain unaudited financial data, including percentages of net sales,
for the eight quarters ended April 30, 2004.

2004 Quarter Ended July 31, 2003 Oct. 31, 2003  Jan. 31, 2004  Apr. 30, 2004
(in thousands)
Netsales. . ..ot e $32,737 $34,747 $22,540 $38,350
Costofsales . ...... ... .. ... . . ... . 17,999 18,527 12,507 20,751
Grossprofit. . ...... ... .. L 14,738 16,220 10,033 17,599
Operating expenses:
Depreciation . ....... ... . . . i, 1,062 1,051 1,040 835
Selling, general and administrative . . ... ......... 10,482 10,532 9,025 11,337
Restructuring and asset impairment . . . .......... — — (65) (284)
Restatement eXpenses . . .. .................. 1,672 1,678 1,172 446
Total operating expenses . . ... .............. 13,216 13,261 11,172 12,334
Operating income (loss) .. .................... 1,522 2,959 (1,139) 5,265
Interest income (expense)
Interest expense . .......... ... ... .. .. ... (58) (44) (31) (22)
Interestincome. ... ........ ..., 43 42 108 s
Net interest income (expense) . .............. (15) 2) 77 62
Income (loss) from continuing operations before income
BAKES © vt e e e e 1,507 2,957 (1,062) 5,327
Income tax expense (benefit) . .. ................ 555 866 (205) 272)(1)
Income (loss) from continuing operations .......... 952 2,091 (857) 5,599
Income from discontinued retail operations, net of tax. . 146 — — —
Netincome (loss) . .. .. oottt $ 1,098 § 2,001 $ (857 $ 5,599
2003 Quarter Ended July 31, 2002 Oct. 31, 2002  Jan. 31, 2003  Apr. 30, 2003
(in thousands)
Netsales. . .. ...t $33,307 $36,505 $25,582 $36,305
Costofsales . ... ... 0. 19,359 21,740 15,608 20,205
Grossprofit. .......... .. ... . 13,948 14,765 9,974 16,100
Operating expenses:
Depreciation .. ......... ... i 1,276 1,275 1,383 : 1,175
Selling, general and administrative . . . . .......... 10,608 11,031 10,144 10,617
Restructuring and asset impairment . . . .......... 3,814 76 (45) (39)
Restatement expenses . .. ........ ... — 1,254 1,275 5,640
Total operating eXpenses . . . ... .. .. ... ﬁQ_S 13,636 12,757 17,393
Operating income (loss) .. .......... ... . ..... (1,750) 1,129 (2,783) (1,293)
Interest income (expense)
Interest Xpemse . .. ... {196) (175) (157) (99)
Interest iNCOME . . . . v vt i r ittt ie e e e n 60 85 62 34
Net interest income (expense) .. ............. (136) (90) (93) (65)
Income (loss) from continuing operations before income
BAXCS © v v et it e e e e e (1,886) 1,039 (2,878) (1,358)
Income tax expense (benefit) . ... ............... (641) 354 (508) 730(1)
Income (loss) from continuing operations .......... (1,245) 685 (2,370) (2,088)
Income (loss) from discontinued retail operations, net of
BAX e (342) (403) (7,331) 1,096
Netincome (losS) . . ..o oo v it $(1,587) $ 282 $(9,701) $ (992)

(1) In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2003, a valuation allowance of $1.2 million was established to reduce deferred
tax assets to their estimated realizable value. In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2004, the valuation allowance was
reversed.
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2004 Quarter Ended

Netsales. .. ... ... ... .. . . . . . .
Costofsales . ........ ...
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Depreciation .. .......... ... ...
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Restructuring and asset impairment . . .. .........
Restatement expenses . .. .......... ... ...

Total operating expenses . . . ................

Operating income (10ss) . ... ....... .. ... ......
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Interest expense . ... .........c .
Interestincome. . ........ ... .. ... ...

Net interest income (expense) .. .............
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TAXES .« o i
Income tax expense (benefit) . ..................

Income (loss) from continuing operations ..........
Income from discontinued retail operations, net of tax. .

Netincome (foss). . ............ .. ...

2003 Quarter Ended

Netsales. . ... ... i i
Costofsales . ... .ot e
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Depreciation .. ...... ... .. ... . .. .
Selling, general and administrative . . .. .. ........
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Restatement expenses .. ....................

Total operating eXpenses . . . ... .............

Operating income (loss) . .....................
Interest income (expense)
Interest expense ... ....... ... .. ... . ...
Interestincome. . ...... .. ... ... L L

Net interest Xpense . . ... ... ..o vv vt

Income (loss) from continuing operations before income
BAXES © v v et e e
Income tax expense (benefit) .. .................

Income (loss) from continuing operations . .........
Income (loss) from discontinued retail operations, net of
TAX . e e e

Netincome (loss) . .. ... ... ... . . L.
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Liquidity and Capital Resources

Our primary ongoing capital requirements are to finance working capital, the continued growth
and operations of our business, the stock repurchase program and cash dividends. During fiscal 2004,
our capital requirements were funded by cash provided by operating activities. Net cash provided by
operating activities in fiscal 2004 was $22.8 million compared to $18.7 million for fiscal 2003. The
increase in net cash provided by operating activities was primarily generated from our net income of
$7.9 million in fiscal 2004 compared to our net loss of $12.0 million in fiscal 2003. We also realized a
significant decrease in inventory in fiscal 2004 as a result of more intensive inventory management,
compared to an increase in inventory in fiscal 2003. These changes were partially offset by a smaller
decrease in our accounts receivable in fiscal 2004, primarily due to a lower level of net sales, and
smaller decreases in accounts payable and accrued liabilities, primarily due to lower inventory levels
and the payment of the shareholder lawsuit settlement. Net cash used in investing activities was
$19.7 million compared to $2.4 million for fiscal 2003. The increase was primarily due to the purchase
of short-term investments in fiscal 2004. We invest in interest-bearing U.S. Government and
high-quality corporate debt instruments and hold these instruments to maturity, which averages
100 days or less. At April 30, 2004 we held $18.0 million in short-term investments. Net cash used in
financing activities was $2.3 million, which primarily consisted of payments under capital lease
obligations. In addition, in December 2003 we received a federal tax refund of $3.6 million, At
April 30, 2004, our cash and cash equivalents were $19.7 million compared to $18.9 million at April 30,
2003.

On March 13, 2003 we entered into a loan agreement with Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. (Wells Fargo)
as agent and Wells Fargo Century, an affiliate of Wells Fargo, as collateral agent and lender for a
$35 million line of credit that expires in March 2005. This replaced our previous line of credit that
expired on March 31, 2003. The amount of credit available to us under this agreement is determined by
a formula based on our accounts receivable and inventory balances. The amount of our available credit
fluctuates as these balances fluctuate, and may at times be less than the maximum $35 million available
under the agreement. We use this line of credit to support our trade financing with letters of credit. We
may also use the line for operating expenses, although we do not currently do so. This loan agreement ‘
also contains certain restrictive covenants covering minimum net worth, minimum working capital and
maximum capital expenditures. These financial covenants require that we maintain a tangible net worth
of at least $50 million and working capital of at least $35 million at all times, and {imit capital
expenditures to not more than $2.5 million in fiscal 2004 and fiscal 2005. We were in compliance with
these covenants at April 30, 2004.

To support our operations, capital expenditures totaling approximately $4.0 million are planned for
fiscal 2005. These capital expenditures will primarily consist of information technology initiatives, as we
plan to upgrade and replace some of our computer systems. We plan to negotiate a waiver with Wells
Fargo for the loan covenant limiting our capital expenditures to $2.5 million in fiscal 2005. Wells Fargo
has indicated to us that a waiver would likely be granted for these expenditures.

Other significant uses of cash included the payment of retention bonuses, payment of cash
dividends, and repurchases of our common stock. In fiscal 2004, we paid approximately $1.9 million in
retention bonuses in the fourth quarter, and we will pay an additional $0.6 million in fiscal 2005 pluas
approximately $0.5 million under our Transition Agreement with our CEO. On March 10, 2004 the
Board of Directors approved the initiation of a quarterly dividend and a stock repurchase program. A
dividend of $0.05 a share, totaling $0.5 million, was paid on April 9, 2004 to shareholders of record on
March 26, 2004. The Board has declared a second dividend payable on July 16, 2004 to shareholders of
record on July 8, 2004, and we expect to pay similar dividends in future quarters. The share repurchase
program authorizes the purchase of up to $6 million in company stock. The purchases will be made
from time to time in the open market or in privately negotiated transactions. During fiscal 2004, we
purchased 56,826 shares of our common stock at an average price of $10.21, for a total repurchase of
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$0.6 million. The repurchase program may be suspended at any time without notice. The timing of
repurchases and the actual number of shares repurchased will depend on market conditions, alternative
uses of capital and other factors.

We believe that cash on hand and cash generated from operations, as well as our ability to borrow
under bank lines of credit will be sufficient to meet our cash requirements during fiscal 2005. We also
have available alternative sources of financing, including factoring our accounts receivable and financing
our capital expenditures with leases. Although these methods of financing are currently available to us,
we do not anticipate using alternative sources of financing during fiscal 2005. However, our capital
needs will depend on many factors, including our growth rate, the need to finance increased production
and inventory levels, the success of our various sales and marketing programs, expenses associated with
the risks and uncertainties related to our restatement and various other factors.

The following is a summary of our contractual obligations as of April 30, 2004:

Less than After

Contractual Obligations 1 year 1-3 years  4-5 years 5 years Total
(in thousands)

Capital leases. . .. ..., $ 596 § 114 $ 710
Lettersof credit(1) . . . ........... ... .. ... .. 6,533 — — — 6,533
Operating leases(1) ............ ... ... .. .... 3,309 6,494 6,862 7452 24,117
Retention bonuses . ............ ..., 620 — — — 620
Restructuring liabilities . . . . ................... 320 640 640 935 2,535

$11,378  $7,248  $7,502  $8,387 $34,515

(1) The letters of credit and operating lease commitments are not reflected on the consolidated
balance sheets under accounting principles generally accepted in the United States.

Foreign Currency Exchange Risk

We do not currently use derivative financial instruments to reduce our exposure to changes in
foreign exchange rates. In conjunction with the closing of our European operations, we have some
remaining assets and liabilities denominated in Euros. These balances are not material to our
consolidated financial statements. To the extent we have assets and liabilities denominated in Euros
that are not hedged, we are subject to foreign currency transaction gains and losses.

Critical Accounting Policies

Our significant accounting policies are described in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements
included in the Company’s filing on Form 10-K for the year ended April 30, 2004. Our discussion and
analysis of financial condition and results of operations are based upon our consolidated financial
statements, which have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generaily accepted in
the United States. The preparation of the financial statements requires us to make estimates and
judgments that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues, expenses, and related
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities. On an on-going basis, we evaluate the estimates that we
have made. These estimates are based upon our historical experience and on various other assumptions
that we believe to be reasonable under the circumstances. Our actual results may differ from these
estimates under different assumptions or conditions. We believe the following critical accounting
estimates affect our more significant judgments and estimates used in the preparation of our
consolidated financial statements.
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Allowances for Doubtful Accounts

We maintain an allowance for doubtful accounts for estimated losses resulting from the inability of
our customers to make required payments. These losses are included in bad debt expense. We
determine the adequacy of this allowance by regularly reviewing our accounts receivable aging and
evaluating individual customer receivables, considering customers’ financial condition, credit history and
current economic conditions. If the financial condition of our customers were to deteriorate, resulting
in an impairment of their ability to make payments, additional allowances may be required.

Reserve for Product Returns

We maintain an estimate of potential future product returns related to current period product
receivables. We analyze the rate of historical returns when evaluating the adequacy of this reserve, and
update our estimate based on our actual results. The estimate for product returns is included in our
calculation of net sales. If we were to experience an increase in our product returns, additional reserves
may be required.

Reserve for Sales Allowances

We maintain an estimate of future sales allowances related to current period sales. We analyze the
rate of historical sales allowances when evaluating the adequacy of this reserve, and update our
estimate based on our actual results. The estimate for sales allowances is included in our calculation of
net sales. If we were to grant additional sales allowances, additional reserves may be required.

Inventories

Inventories, which are predominantly finished goods, are valued at the lower of cost or market,
with cost determined using the weighted average method. We perform a detailed analysis of inventory
on a quarterly basis to identify unsold out-of-season golf and specialty retail merchandise. We estimate
the net realizable value of the out-of-season merchandise based upon disposition plans and historical
experience. A valuation allowance is established to reduce the carrying amount of out-of-season
merchandise to its estimated net realizable value. If actual market conditions are less favorable than
those we project, additional allowances may be required.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

We review the carrying values of our long-lived assets whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that such carrying values may not be recoverable. Unforeseen events and changes in
circumstances and market conditions and changes in estimates of future cash flows could negatively
affect the fair value of our assets and result in an impairment charge. Fair value is the amount at which
the asset could be bought or sold in a current transaction between willing parties and may be estimated
using a number of techniques, including quoted market prices or valuations by third parties, present
value techniques based on estimates of cash flows, or multiples of earnings or revenues performance
measures. The fair value of the asset could be different using different estimates and assumptions in
these valuation techniques.

Restructuring Liabilities

Restructuring-related liabilities consist of estimates for losses on anticipated disposition of lease
obligations. Key variables in determining this estimate include the anticipated timing of sublease
rentals, estimates of sublease rental payment amounts and estimates for brokerage and other related
costs. We periodically evaluate and, if necessary, adjust our estimates based on currently available
information.
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Valuation Allowance in Deferred Income Tax Assets

We periodically review the need for a valuation allowance to reduce our deferred income tax asset
balances to their net realizable value. To the extent we determine an allowance is required, we
determine the adequacy of this allowance by regularly reviewing our historical taxable income and
forecasts of future taxable income over the periods in which the temporary differences are anticipated
to reverse. If our actual results are lower than our forecasted future results, additional allowances may
be required.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk

We are subject to certain market risks, including interest rate risks associated with financial
instruments included in cash and cash equivalents and short-term investments. We invest in interest-
bearing U.S. Government and high-quality corporate debt instruments and hold these instruments until
maturity, which averages 100 days or less. Changes in interest rates may affect the fair market value of
these instruments. Due to the short-term nature of these instruments and our investment policies and
procedures, we do not expect interest rate fluctuations to have a material adverse effect on our results
of operations. We do not use derivative financial instruments to manage interest rate risk.

We do not use derivative financial instruments to reduce our exposure to changes in foreign
currency exchange rates, and we do not use derivatives for speculative trading purposes.

The following table provides information about our marketable fixed income securities, including
principal cash flows by expected maturity and the related weighted average interest rates at April 30,
2004.

Expected maturity date

(in thousands, except percentages) Fiscal 2005
U.S. Corporate debt securities . . ... .....vvvvrenenenn . $ 17,952
Average rate of return . ... ... ... L e 0.990%

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

The financial statements required pursuant to this item are filed under Part IV, Item 15(a)(1) of
this report. The financial statement schedule required under Regulation S-X is filed under Part IV,
Item 15(a)(2) of this report.

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures

Evaluation of the Company’s Disclosure Controls and Procedures. As of April 30, 2004, we
evaluated the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures as defined in Rules 13a-15(¢) and
15d-15(e) under the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”). This
evaluation was done under the supervision and with the participation of management, including our
Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer. The evaluation included inquiring of senior
managers whether our records and reports were correct and complete. We are continuing to develop
internal processes for documenting, testing and monitoring our disclosure procedures. These internal
processes are based on employees’ reports of their processes, analysis of our documentation, and
limited testing to validate our processes and documentation.

Limitations on the Effectiveness of Controls. Our management does not expect that our disclosure
controls or our internal controls will prevent all errors and all fraud. A control system, no matter how
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well conceived or operated, can provide only reasonable, not absolute, assurance that the objectives of
the control system are met. The design of our control system reflects the fact that there are resource
constraints and the benefits of such controls were considered relative to their costs. Because of the
inherent limitations in all control systems, no evaluation of controls can provide absolute assurance that
all control failures and instances of fraud, if any, within the Company have been detected. These
inherent limitations include the realities that judgments in decision-making can be faulty and that
breakdowns can occur because of simple error or mistake. Additionally, controls can be circumvented
by the individual acts of some persons, by collusion of two or more people, or by management override
of control. The design of any system of controls is also based in part on certain assumptions about the
likelihood of future events, and there can be no assurance that any design will succeed in achieving its
stated goals under all potential future conditions. Because of the inherent limitations in a cost-effective
control system, misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected.

Conclusions. Based on our evaluation, our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer
concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures are effective to ensure that information required
to be disclosed by us in reports that we file or submit under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed,
summarized and reported within the time periods specified in SEC rules and forms.

Changes in Internal Controls. There were no changes in our internal control over financial
reporting (as defined in Rules 13a-15(f) or 15d-15(f) of the Exchange Act) during the fiscal year ended
April 30, 2004 that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal
control over financial reporting.
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PART 111

Item 10. Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant

The information required by this Item, including information relating to the Company’s Code of
Ethics, is incorporated herein by reference to the information contained in the “Executive Officers of
the Company” and “Election of Directors™ sections of the Company’s Proxy Statement to be filed with
the Securities and Exchange Commission within 120 days after the close of our fiscal year.

Item 11, Executive Compensation

The information required by this Item is incorporated herein by reference to the information
contained in the “Executive Compensation” section of our Proxy Statement to be filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission within 120 days after the close of our fiscal year.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management

The information required by this Item is incorporated herein by reference to the information
contained in the “Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management” section of our
Proxy Statement to be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission within 120 days after the
close of our fiscal year.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

The information required by this Item is incorporated herein by reference to the information
contained in the “Certain Relationships and Related Transactions” section of our Proxy Statement to
be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission within 120 days after the close of our fiscal year.

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services

The information required by this Item is incorporated herein by reference to the information
contained in the “Audit Committee Report” section of our Proxy Statement to be filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission within 120 days after the close of our fiscal year.
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PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules, and Reports on Form 8-K

a. Financial Statements, Financial Statement Schedules:

E’Eg_e
1. Consolidated Financial Statements:
Report of Ernst & Young LLP, Independent Auditors 31
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of April 30, 2004 and 2003 32
Consolidated Statements of Operations for the years ended April 30, 2004, 2003 and 2002 33
Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity for the years ended April 30, 2004, 2003
and 2002 34
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended April 30, 2004, 2003 and 2002 35
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 36
2. Financial Statement Schedule II-Valuation and Qualifying Accounts 55

All aother financial statement schedules not listed are omitted because either they are not
applicable or not required, or the required information is included in the consolidated financial
statements or the notes thereto. -

3. Exhibits
Exhibits required by Item 601 of Regulation S-K:
Exhibit No.
31 Restated Articles of Incorporation (filed herewith)
3.2 Bylaws, as amended and restated June 15, 2004 (filed herewith)
4,1 Specimen Common Stock Certificate (4.1)(1)
4.2 Shareholder Rights Plan(9)
10.1 Industrial Lease dated May 27, 1999 between Cutter & Buck Inc. and Zelman
Renton, LLC (10.19)(3)
10.2 First Amendment dated October 6, 1999 to Industrial Lease dated May 27, 1999
between Cutter & Buck Inc. and Zelman Renton, LLC (10.1)(4)
10.3 Lease dated April 30, 2002 between Adobe Systems Incorporated and Cutter &
Buck Inc. (10.22)(6)
10.4 Lease dated May 16, 2001 between Zelman Renton, LLC and Cutter & Buck Inc.
(10.23)(6)
10.5 Amendment dated May 16, 2001 to lease dated May 27, 1999 (See Exhibit 10.3)
between Zelman Renton, LLC and Cutter & Buck Inc. (10.24)(6)
10.6 1991 Stock Option Plan (10.9)(1)
10.7 1995 Nonemployee Director Stock Incentive Plan (10.10)(1)
10.8 1995 Employee Stock Option Plan (10.11)(1)
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10.9

10.10

10.11

10.12

10.13

10.14
10.15

10.16

10.17

10.18

10.19

10.20

10.21*

10.22

10.23

23.1
311

312

32.1

1995 Employee Stock Purchase Plan (incorporated by reference to the Registrant’s
Registration Statement on Form S-8 (File No. 333-80783))

1997 Stock Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to the Registrant’s Registration
Statement on Form S-8 (File No. 333-43145))

1999 Nonemployee Director Stock Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to the
Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-8 (File No. 333-88627))

2000 Transition Stock Incentive Plan for Officers (incorporated by reference to the
Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-8 (File No. 333-48264))

2000 Stock Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to the Registrant’s Registration
Statement on Form S-8 (File No. 333-48264))

Stock Bonus Plan (10.16)(2)

Change in Control Agreement as amended July 10, 2003 between Cutter &
Buck Inc. and Frances M. Conley (10.17)(8)

Change in Control Agreement as amended September 18, 2002 between Cutter &
Buck Inc. and Jim C. McGehee (10.18)(5)

Change in Control Agreement as amended November 15, 2002 between Cutter &
Buck Inc. and Ernest R. Johnson (10.19)(8)

Loan Agreement dated March 10, 2003 between Cutter & Buck Inc. and Wells Fargo
Bank, N.A. and Century Business Credit Corporation, and supporting documents
(10.5X7)

Retention Incentive Program (10.26)(6)

Retention Incentive Grant Letter dated November 15, 2002 from the Company to
Ernest R. Johnson (10.24)(8)

Endorsement Agreement dated July 15, 2003 between Cutter & Buck Inc. and
Esch & Stam Inc. regarding Annika Sorenstam (10.26)(8)

Memorandum of Understanding dated June 13, 2003 between Cutter & Buck Inc.,
Harvey N. Jones and Stephen S. Lowber and the Lead Plaintiff Tilson Growth Fund
(10.25)(8) ‘

Transition Agreement dated July 10, 2004 between Cutter & Buck Inc., Frances M.
Conley and Gerald R. Conley (99.2)(10)

Consent of Ernst & Young LLP, Independent Auditors (filed herewith)(10)

Certification of the Company’s Chief Executive Officer required by Section 302(a) of
the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002(11)

Certification of the Company’s Chief Financial Officer required by Section 302(a) of
the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002(11)

Certification of the Company’s Chief Executive Officer required by Section 906 of
the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002(11)
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322 Certification of the Company’s Chief Financial Officer required by Section 906 of
the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002(11)

*  CONFIDENTIAL TREATMENT HAS BEEN REQUESTED FOR PORTIONS OF THIS
EXHIBIT.

(1) Incorporated by reference to the exhibit shown in the preceding parentheses and filed with the
Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form SB-2 (File No. 33-94540-LA).

(2) Incorporated by reference to the exhibit shown in the preceding parentheses and filed with the
Registrant’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended October 31, 1998.

(3) Incorporated by reference to the exhibit shown in the preceding parentheses and filed with the
Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended April 30, 1999.

(4) Incorporated by reference to the exhibit shown in the preceding parentheses and filed with the
Registrant’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended January 31, 2000.

(5) Incorporated by reference to the exhibit shown in the preceding parentheses and filed with the
Registrant’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended January 31, 2001.

(6) Incorporated by reference to the exhibit shown in the preceding parentheses and filed with the
Registrant’s Form 10-K for the year ended April 30, 2002.

(7) Incorporated by reference to the exhibit shown in the preceding parentheses and filed with the
Registrant’s Form 8-K on July 3, 2003.

(8) Incorporated by reference to the exhibit shown in the preceding parentheses and filed with the
Registrant’s Form 10-K for the year ended April 30, 2003.

(9) Incorporated by reference to the exhibit shown in the preceding parentheses and filed with the
Registrant’s Form 8-K on November 25, 1998.

(10) Incorporated by reference to the exhibit shown in the preceeding parentheses and filed with the
Registrant’s Form 8-K on July 13, 2004.

(11) A signed original of this written statement has been provided to the Company and will be retained
by the Company and furnished to the SEC or its staff upon request.

b. Reports on Form 8-K

The Company filed a Form 8-K on March 17, 2004 to announce the inception of a quarterly
dividend and a stock repurchase program, and to announce financial results for the third quarter and
first nine months of fiscal year 2004.

The Company filed a Form 8-K on April 29, 2004 and a Form 8-K/A on May 18, 2004 to
announce the resignation of Director Michael S. Brownfield and the departure of Paul Bourgeois, Vice
President and Manager of the Golf SBU.
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REPORT OF ERNST & YOUNG LLP,
INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Shareholders
Cutter & Buck Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Cutter & Buck Inc. as of
April 30, 2004 and 2003, and the related consolidated statements of operations, shareholders’ equity,
and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended April 30, 2004. Our audits also included
the financial statement schedule listed in the Index at 15(a)2. These financial statements and schedule
are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
these financial statements and schedule based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We
believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the consolidated financial position of Cutter & Buck Inc. at April 30, 2004 and 2003, and the
consolidated results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended
April 30, 2004, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. Also, in our opinion,
the related financial statement schedule, when considered in relation to the basic financial statements
taken as a whole, presents fairly in all material respects the information set forth therein.

/s/ Ernst & Young LLP

Seattle, Washington
June 18, 2004
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

April 30,  April 30,

2004 2003
(in thousands, except share amounts)
Assets
Current assets: ‘
Cash and cash equivalents . ....... ... .. .. . ... . . . . i $19,715 $18,864
ShOTt-term INVESTIMENTS . o o v v vt e e s e et e e e e e e et e e e 17,952 —
Accounts receivable, net of allowances for doubtful accounts, returns and
allowances of $2,496 at April 30, 2004 and $3,746 at April 30,2003 ......... 22,502 24,333
INVEntories, MEL . . . . oot it i et e e e e e e e 21,938 34,539
Deferred InCome taxes . . . ... v ittt e e e 2,566 3,586
Prepaid expenses and other current assets . . . . ........vvin v, 2,282 4,740
Total CUITENt ASSELS . . . . v it e it e e e 86,955 86,062
Furniture and equipment, Net .. ... ... ...t e 6,290 8,894
Deferred inCoOme taXes . . . ..ottt t ittt e e 376 178
Other 88818 . . o vt e e e e e e e 309 544
TOtal aSSEIS . . ot $93,930 $95,678
Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable . . ... .. e $ 2,940 §$ 6,381
Accrued liabilities . ... .. e e 7,161 12,327
Income taxes payable . . ... . ... L 1,217 —
Current portion of capital lease obligations . . .......................... 557 1,732
Total current Habilities . . . .. v i i e e e 11,875 20,440
Capital lease obligations, less current portion ... .......... ..., 111 702
Other liabilities . . . . . ... e 2,215 2,548
Commitments and CONtiNGENCIES . .. ... ..ottt ittt e, — —
Shareholders’ equity:
Preferred stock, no par value, 6,000,000 shares authorized: none issued and
OULSTANAING . . . o oottt e e e — —
Common stock, no par value, 25,000,000 shares authorized:
10,752,552 issued and outstanding at April 30, 2004 and 10,634,132 at
April 30, 2003 . ... e e 65,116 64,805
Deferred compensation .. ... ... ... .t — (37)
Retained earnings . ... ..ottt e 14,613 7,220
Total shareholders’ equity .. ... .. it e 79,729 71,988
Total liabilities and shareholders” equity . .. ... ... ... .. ... $93,930 $95,678

See accompanying notes
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Year Ended April 30,

(in thousands, except per share amounts)

Net sales ..o
Costofsales . ... ...

Grossprofit .. ... . . e

Operating expenses:

Depreciation . ....... ...
Selling, general and administrative ......................
Restructuring and asset impairment . ....................
Restatement Xpenses . .. ... ...ttt

Total operating eXpenses . . .. ......cviii ...
Operating income (l0SS) .. ... .o

Interest income (expense)

Interest EXpense . . ... ..ot i
Interest INCOME . . ... . i i e e

Net interest incCOMe (EXPENSE) . . v oo v v vttt i e e e

Income (loss) from continuing operations before income taxes . . . .
Income tax expense (benefit) .. ....... ... ...

Income (loss) from continuing operations . . . .................
Income (loss) from discontinued retail operations, net of tax ... ...

Netincome (I0S8) . .o vt r vt i e e e

Basic earnings (loss) per share:

Earnings (loss) from continuing operations . . ... ..............
Earnings (loss) from discontinued retail operations . ............
Net earnings (10S8) .. ... ..o i

Diluted earnings (loss) per share:

Earnings (loss) from continuing operations . . . ................
Earnings (loss) from discontinued retail operations . ............
Net earnings (10SS) . ... .. v

See accompanying notes
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2004 2003 2002
$128,374 $131,699 $161,113
69,784 76912 106,189
58,590 54,787 54,924
3,988 5,109 5,423
41376 42400 52,350
(349) 3,806 5,524
4,968 8,169 —
49983 59484 63297
8,607  (4,697)  (8373)
(155) 627)  (1,731)
277 241 132
122 (386)  (1,599)
8729  (5083) (9,972
944 (65)  (2,945)
7,785 (5018)  (7,027)
146 (6980)  (3,346)
$ 7,931 $(11,998) $(10,373)
$ 073 $ (047) $ (0.66)
$ 001 $ (0.66) $ (0.32)
$ 074 $ (113) $ (0.98)
$ 070 $ (047) § (0.66)
$ 001 $ (0.66) $ (0.32)
$ 071 $ (L13) $ (0.98)




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Accumulated
Common Stock Deferred Retained Coml?rtehhe:nsive
Shares Amount Compensation Earnings Loss Total

(in thousands, except share amounts)
Balance, April 30,2001 ............. 10,539,512 $64,187 $(969)  $ 29,591 $(460)  $ 92,349
Stock issued under employee stock

purchase plan .................. 46,829 182 — — — 182
Exercise of stock options . . . ......... 3,469 5 — — — 5
Tax benefit on exercise of stock options. . — 5 — — — 5
Expense relating to stock options granted

to non-employee . ............... — 65 — — — 65
Stock-based compensation . . ......... — 81 (81) — — —
Amortization of deferred compensation . — — 701 — — 701
Netloss......ovueiiinneon. — — — (10,373) — (10,373)
Foreign currency translation. ......... — — — — (80) (80)
Foreign currency translation loss

recognized ............ ... ... .. — — — — 540 540
Comprehensive loss. .. ............. — — — — — (9,913)
Balance, April 30,2002 . ............ 10,589,810 64,525 (349) 19,218 — 83,394
Stock issued under employee stock

purchase plan .................. 25,213 81 — — — 81
Exercise of stock options . .. ......... 3,844 7 — — — 7
Tax benefit on exercise of stock options. . — 3 — — — 3
Expense relating to stock options granted

to non-employee . ............... — 47 — — — 47
Non-cash compensation expense . . . .. .. — 79 — — — 79
Deferred compensation relating to

restricted stock grants .. .......... 15,265 63 (63) — — —
Amortization of deferred compensation . — — 375 — — 375
Netloss.......ovviiinnon.. — — — (11,998) — (11,998)
Balance, April 30,2003 ............. 10,634,132 64,805 37 7,220 — 71,988
Stock issued under employee stock
~ purchaseplan .................. 17,323 65 — —_ — 65
Exercise of stock options . . .......... 157,923 593 — — — 593
Tax benefit on exercise of stock options. . — 236 — — — 236
Amortization of deferred compensation . — — 37 — — 37
Repurchase of common stock. . ....... (56,826)  (583) — — — (583)
Dividends on common stock ($0.05 per

share). . ... ... .. L o L, — — — (538) — (538)
Netincome .............cuur.... — — — 7,931 — 7,931
Balance, April 30,2004 .. ........... 10,752,552 $65,116 $ — $ 14,613 $ — $ 79,729

See accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Year Ended April 30, 2004 2003 2002
(in thousands)
Operating activities:
Net income (10SS) . . . it i e $ 7931 $(11,998) $(10,373)
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash provided by operating
activities:
Depreciation . . ... ... e 4,179 5,872 6,591
Deferred income taxes . .. ... ... e 822 — 1,923
Tax benefit on exercise of stock options .. .......... ... ... ...... 236 3 5
Deferred gain on sale and leaseback of capital assets . . .............. (72) (144) (%0)
Loss on disposals of furniture and equipment ... .................. 164 31 —
Loss on disposal of discontinued retail operations .. ................ — 4,158 —
Amortization of deferred compensation ............ ... ... ... ... 37 375 620
Noncash compensation eXpense . . . ... ..ot i enneennnn.n — 126 65
Noncash restructuring and asset impairment charges . ............... (363) 4,035 5,477
Inventory write-downs related to restructuring . ... ....... .. ..., ... — — 3,336
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable, net . ... ... ... .. e 2,194 17,571 1,914
Inventories, NEt . . . . . .. .. .. 12,601 (8,331) 26,231
Prepaid expenses and other assets. . ... ... ... .. ... .. 2,695 4,179 (6,922)
Accounts payable, accrued liabilities and other liabilities . .. ......... (8,871) 2,500 (2,574)
Income taxes payable . ........ .. .. ... ... . 1,217 — —
Net cash provided by operating activities . ... ........ ... .. ... .. ... 22,770 18,657 26,203
Investing activities:
Purchases of furniture and equipment .. ............ ... .. ... ... .. (1,702) (2,820) (2,257)
Proceeds from disposals of furniture and equipment .. ................ — 298 —
Purchases of short-term investments . .. ..........vvvnnninnn.. .. (44,885) — —_
Maturities of short-term investments . ... ... .. .. ... urinene.on.. 26,933 — —
Decrease in trademark, patents and marketing rights . . . . .............. — 147 (114)
Net cash used in investing activities . . ... ........ ... . . ... (19,654)  (2,375)  (2,371)
Financing activities:
Net repayments of short-term borrowings . . ... ..................... — —  (18,785)
Net repayments of long-termdebt . . ... .. ... ... ... ... ... ... — — (3,571)
Principal payments under capital lease obligations . . . ................. (1,802)  (4,495)  (2,784)
Payment of dividends . . . .. ... ... . (538) — —
Repurchases of common stock ... ... ... .. . (583) — —
Issuance of common stock ... ... ... 658 88 182
Net cash used in financing activities .................... ... ...... (2,265)  (4,407) (24,958)
Effects of foreign exchange rate on changesincash................... — — 43
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents. . .. ........ ... ... .. ..... 851 11,875 (1,083)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period . . .. .................. 18,864 6,989 8,072
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period . . .. ....... ... ... ... ...... $ 19,715 $ 18864 § 6,989
Supplemental information:
Cash paid during the year for interest .. ........... ... e, $ 155 § 465 § 1,490
Cash paid during the year for income taxes .. ..........c..cuovuunn.... $ 30 § 149 § 344
Noncash financing and investing activities:
Equipment acquired under capital leases .. ............ .. ... ...... $ 37§ — 202
Deferred compensation for issuance of restricted stock . ............... $ — § 63 —

See accompanying notes
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1. Description of the Business and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Description of the Business

Cutter & Buck Inc. (the “Company”) designs, sources and markets men’s and women’s sportswear,
fashion and outerwear apparel. The Company’s trade customers are principally golf pro shops and
resorts, corporate accounts and specialty retail stores. Through the end of April 2003, the Company
also operated Company-owned retail stores. These stores were closed by April 30, 2003 and are
presented as discontinued operations throughout the consolidated financial statements (Note 12).

The Company has two wholly-owned subsidiaries, Cutter & Buck (Europe) B.V. and Cutter &
Buck GmbH established for the purpose of direct marketing, sales and distribution of Cutter & Buck
sportswear, fashion and outerwear in Europe. These subsidiaries ceased operations on April 30, 2002 in
conjunction with the 2002 Restructuring Plan {(Note 10). The Company continues to do business in
Europe through a royalty-based licensing agreement with a third party as well as through licensing and
distributor agreements in other parts of the world.

Principles of Consolidation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its
wholly-owned subsidiaries. All significant intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts
reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results could differ from those
estimates.

Reclassifications

Certain amounts from the prior year financial statements have been reclassified to conform to the
current year presentation.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all short-term investments with maturities of 90 days or less at purchase to
be cash equivalents.

Short-Term Investments

The Company invests in interest-bearing U.S. Government and high-quality corporate debt
instruments. Management determines the appropriate classification of these investments at the time of
purchase and re-evaluates such classification as of each balance sheet date. At April 30, 2004, the
Company’s investment portfolio was classified as held-to-maturity, and the Company has the positive
intent and ability to hold the securities to maturity. The investment portfolio is carried at amortized
cost, which approximates fair market value. Management regularly reviews the carrying value of
investments in order to identify and record losses when events and circumstances indicate that declines
in the fair value of such assets below amortized cost are other-than-temporary. Declines in fair market
value below amortized cost were not material as of April 30, 2004.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Note 1. Description of the Business and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Accounts Receivable

The Company extends credit to customers in the normal course of business, subject to established
credit limits. Accounts receivable, net, in the Consolidated Balance Sheets, consists of amounts due
from customers net of allowances for doubtful accounts and reserves for returns and sales allowances.
The allowance for doubtful accounts is determined by reviewing accounts receivable aging and
evaluating individual customer receivables, considering customers’ financial condition, credit history and
current economic conditions. The reserves for returns and sales allowances are determined by an
analysis of the historical rate of returns and sales allowances. The Company’s historical determination
of allowances and reserves has not differed materially from actual results.

Concentrations of Credit Risk

The Company sells its products to approved customers on an open account basis, subject to
established credit limits, cash in advance or cash on delivery terms. The Company is subject to credit
risk on the majority of its receivables. These receivables are geographically disbursed throughout the
United States, Europe and selected foreign countries where formal licensing or distributor agreements
exist.

Inventories

Inventories, which are predominantly finished goods, are valued at the lower of cost or market,
with cost determined under the weighted average method. A detailed analysis of inventory is performed
on a quarterly basis to identify slow-moving and out-of-season merchandise. The net realizable value of
this merchandise is estimated based upon disposition plans and historical experience. A valuation
allowance is established to reduce the carrying amount of slow-moving merchandise to its estimated net
realizable value.

Samples

The Company capitalizes the costs of merchandise samples that relate to goods to be sold in future
selling seasons. These samples are amortized on a straight-line basis over the respective selling seasons
of six months. The amortization of samples is charged to selling expenses over the revenue-generating
period.

Furniture and Equipment

Furniture and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation
is calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the related assets. Machinery and
equipment are depreciated over three to seven years, Furniture and equipment are depreciated over
three to five years. Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the lesser of the lease term or the
estimated economic useful life of the asset, generally five to ten years. Furniture and equipment
acquired under capital leases are amortized on a straight-line basis over the lesser of the lease term or
the estimated economic useful life of the asset. Sales fixtures are depreciated on a straight-line basis
over three years.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Note 1. Description of the Business and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes using the liability method, whereby deferred tax assets
and liabilities are determined based on differences between financial reporting and tax bases of assets
and liabilities measured using enacted tax rates and laws that will be in effect when the differences are
expected to reverse. A valuation allowance is provided for deferred tax assets if it is more likely than
not that the balance of these assets will not be fully realizable.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The fair value of the Company’s capital lease obligations is estimated based on the current rates
offered to the Company for debt of the same remaining maturities. The carrying amount of these
financial instruments at April 30, 2004 and 2003 approximated fair value. The carrying amount of cash
equivalents, accounts receivable and accounts payable also approximates fair value.

Long-lived Assets

The Company adopted Financial Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 144, “Accounting for
the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets” (SFAS 144) in the first quarter of fiscal 2003.
Accordingly, the carrying values of long-lived assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that such carrying values may not be recoverable. The Company does
not perform a periodic assessment of assets for impairment in the absence of such information or
indicators. The Company records an impairment charge for the excess of the carrying value of an asset
over its estimated fair value. The Company estimates the fair value of assets by determining estimates
of future cash flows, third-party valuation or other measures as it deems appropriate.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue, net of promotional discounts and rebates, is recognized at the time the product is
shipped to the customer. The terms and conditions of sales agreements specify that possession and risk
of loss passes to customers when the product is delivered to a third-party carrier. However, in cases
where goods are shipped to customers prematurely, revenue is not recognized until the time the goods
would have normally been shipped to the customer. There is generally no right to return for customers,
other than for defective or mis-shipped products. Under certain circumstances the Company does
accept customer returns as part of stock rotations, but such accommodations are made under limited
pre-established programs or on a case-by-case basis. An allowance for estimated sales returns is
provided as a reduction to sales when the related revenue is recorded. For certain golf tournaments,
product is shipped on a consignment basis. Revenue for these sales is recognized, not when product is
shipped, but when the customer sells the product to consumers.

Cost of Sales

Cost of sales includes the expenses incurred to acquire and produce inventory for sale, including
product costs, inbound freight costs, import costs and embroidery costs as well as reserves for
slow-moving and out-of-fashion merchandise. Inbound freight, import and embroidery costs totaled
$16.7 million, $19.2 million and $27.1 million for the years ended April 30, 2004, 2003 and 2002,
respectively. Purchasing and receiving costs, warehousing costs and other costs of distribution totaled
$6.1 million, $7.2 million and $9.4 million for the years ended April 30, 2004, 2003 and 2002,
respectively, and are included in selling, general and administrative expenses.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Note 1. Description of the Business and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Advertising

Advertising costs are expensed as incurred. Advertising costs include trade marketing and
advertising and cooperative advertising. Advertising expense is included within selling, general and
administrative expenses and totaled $1.7 million, $1.4 million and $3.1 million for the years ended
April 30, 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

Foreign Currency Transactions and Translation

Assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated to U.S. dollars at the
exchange rate on the balance sheet date. Revenues, costs and expenses are translated at the average
rates of exchange prevailing during the year. Until April 30, 2002 when the Company ceased operations
in Europe, translation adjustments resulting from this process were recorded as a component of
comprehensive income. Beginning May 1, 2002, translation adjustments were recorded as a
restructuring expense.

Earnings (Loss) Per Share

Basic earnings (loss) per share are based on the weighted average number of common shares
outstanding. Diluted earnings (loss) per share are based on the weighted average number of common
shares and equivalents outstanding. Common share equivalents included in the computation represent
shares issuable upon assumed exercise of outstanding stock options and warrants except when the effect
of their inclusion would be anti-dilutive.

Stock-Based Compensation

The Company accounts for stock-based compensation using the intrinsic value method prescribed
in Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees,” and
related interpretations. The Company has elected to apply the disclosure-only provisions of Statement
of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation,” as
amended by SFAS No. 148, “Accounting for Stock-based Compensation—Transition and Disclosure.”
Compensation expense for stock options is recognized over the vesting period of the grant based on the
excess, if any, of the market price of the Company’s common stock at the date of grant over the stock
option exercise price. Under the Company’s plans, stock options are generally granted at fair market
value. The Company also has an Employee Stock Purchase Plan which allows eligible employees to
purchase Company stock at a 15% discount from market price utilizing payroll deductions.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Note 1. Description of the Business and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

If compensation costs for stock-based compensation had been recognized based on the fair value
method, the pro forma amounts of the Company’s net income (loss) and net earnings (loss) per share
would have been as follows:

Year Ended April 30, 2004 2003 2002
(in thousands, except per share amounts)
Net income (loss), as reported .. ............ $ 7,931 $(11,998) $ (10,373)
Add: Stock-based employee compensation
expense, asreported . ... ... ... — 79 81

Deduct: Total stock-based employee
compensation expense determined under the

fair value based method for all awards. . ... .. (1,487) (1,591) (1,999)
Pro forma net income (loss) ... ............. $ 6444 § (13,510) $ (12,291)
Earnings (loss) per share:

Basic—as reported . ... ... .. o oL $ 074 $§ (113) § (0.98)

Basic—proforma . ..................... $ 060 $ (127) $ (1.17)

Diluted—as reported . .................. $ 071 $ (113) § (0.98)

Diluted—pro forma .................... $ 058 § (127) § (117)

The fair value for each option grant was estimated at the date of grant using the Black-Scholes
option pricing model, with the following weighted-average assumptions. Future dividends were assumed
to be zero until March 15, 2004, when the Board of Directors authorized a quarterly dividend that is
expected to yield approximately 2% annually, depending on the stock price.

Year Ended April 30, 2004 2003 2002

Risk-free interest rate ... ................. 2.6% 3.0% 4.9%
Volatility . . ......... .. .. 57% 63% 65%
Expected life . ......... ... ... ... .. ..... 5 years 5 years 5 years
Weighted average fair value of option grants . ... $ 242 $§ 195 § 424

The fair value for shares granted under the Employee Stock Purchase Plan was estimated at the
date of grant using the Black-Scholes option pricing model, with the following weighted-average
assumptions. Future dividends were assumed to be zero until March 15, 2004, when the Board of
Directors authorized a quarterly dividend that is expected to yield approximately 2% annually,
depending on the stock price.

Year Ended April 30, 2004 2003 2002

Risk-free interestrate .................... 2.8% 3.5% 4.7%
Volatility . . ... . 53% 63% 65%
Expectedlife . ............ ... . ... ... 6 months 6 months 6 months

Weighted average fair value of Employee Stock
Purchase Plan grants . .................. $ 148 8§ 097 § 121

Stock compensation expense for options granted to non-employees is determined in accordance
with SFAS No. 123 and the Emerging Issues Task Force (EITF) consensus in Issue No. 96-18,
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Note 1. Description of the Business and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) =

“Accounting for Equity Instruments that are Issued to Other Than Employees for Acquiring, or in
Conjunction with Selling, Goods or Services” (EITF No. 96-18). Accordingly, expense is recognized
over the vesting period of the grant based on the fair value of the consideration received or the fair
value of the options estimated at the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option pricing model,

whichever is more reliably measured.

Segments

The Company has one operating segment: the design, production, marketing and selling of

sportswear, fashion and outerwear apparel. The information for this segment is the information used by
the Company’s chief operating decision maker to evaluate operating performance.

New Accounting Pronouncements

In December 2003, the SEC released Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 104, “Revenue Recognition”.
The SEC staff updated and revised the existing revenue recognition guidance to make its interpretive
guidance consistent with current accounting guidance. The provisions of this bulletin did not have a
material effect on the Company’s consolidated results of operations or financial position.

Note 2. Short-term Investments

Short-term investments held-to-maturity consisted of the following securities, all of which mature

within one year:

Gross Gross
Amortized unrealized unrealized Estimated
cost gains losses fair value
(in thousands)
U.S. Corporate debt securities . . ... ........coveuu.... $17,952 $7 $2 $17,957
Note 3. Prepaid Expenses and Other Current Assets
Prepaid expenses and other current assets consisted of the following:
April 30, 2004 2003
(in thousands)
Prepaid insurance ........... .. . . . ... ... $ 671 $1,036
Prepaidrents. . .. ... ... . 351 333
Samples .. ... 355 522
Other prepaid eXpenses . . ... ..ottt 905 644
Refundable income taxes .. ....... ... .. — 2,205
$2,282  $4,740
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) j

Note 4. Furniture and Equipment

Furniture and equipment consisted of the following:

April 30, 2004 2003

(in thousands)

Leasehold improvements .. ...............oueiuinennnn $ 1,055 § 1,348

Machinery and equipment . ............ ... ... .. ... ... 3,521 7,484

Sales fiXtures . ... .. .ottt e 2,526 7,836

Furniture and other fixtures .. .......... ..., 12,413 11,806

19,515 28474 "

Less accumulated depreciation and amortization .. ......... (13,225)  (19,580)

$ 6290 § 8,289%

The total cost of leased equipment capitalized at April 30, 2004 and 2003 was $2.7 million and
$8.2 million, respectively, with related accumulated amortization of $1.8 million and $4.9 million,
respectively.

Note 5. Debt

The Company has a loan agreement with Wells Fargo Bank, N.A (Wells Fargo) as agent and Wells
Fargo Century, an affiliate of Wells Fargo, as collateral agent and lender for a $35 million line of credit
that expires in March 2005.

The availability of funds under the revolving line of credit is determined by a borrowing formula,
and advances on the line are to be used for general corporate purposes. Interest on advances is
charged at either the LIBOR rate plus 2.75% or the Wells Fargo Bank reference rate, each as defined
in the loan agreement, at the borrower’s election. The line of credit expires on March 12, 2005, and
may be renewed annually thereafter or terminated under the terms of the agreement. The line is
collateralized by a security interest in the Company’s accounts receivable, inventory, furniture and
equipment, contract rights and general intangibles. The loan agreement contains certain restrictive
covenants covering minimum net worth, minimum working capital and maximum capital expenditures.
These financial covenants require that the Company maintain a tangible net worth of at least
$50 million, working capital of at least $35 million at all times, and limit capital expenditures to no
more than $2.5 million in fiscal year 2004 and fiscal year 2005. The Company was in compliance with
these covenants at April 30, 2004. At April 30, 2004, letters of credit outstanding against this line of
credit totaled approximately $6.5 million and there were no working capital advances outstanding. At
April 30, 2003, letters of credit outstanding totaled approximately $8.7 million and there were no
working capital advances outstanding.
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Note 6. Income Taxes

The foreign and domestic components of income (loss) from continuing operations before income
taxes were as follows:

Year Ended April 30, 2004 2003 2002
(in thousands)

DOMEStiC. « o oot e v e $8,729  $(5,083) $(5,069)
Foreign . ... ... . — —  (4,903)

$8,729 $(5,083) $(9.972)

The provision (benefit) for income taxes on continuing operations consisted of the following:

Year Ended April 30, 2004 2003 2002
(in thousands)
Current tax provision (benefit)

Federal ... ... $ 91 $(214) $(3,850)
State. ... e 31 149 (351)
122 (65) (4,201)

...................... 822 — 1,256
$944 § (65) $(2,945)

The provision for income taxes on continuing operations differs from the amount of tax
determined by applying the federal statutory rate for the following reasons:

Year Ended April 30, 2004 2003 2002
(in thousands)

Tax provision (benefit) at federal statutory tax rate . ... $ 2,968 $(1,627) $(3,391)
Non-deductible expenses . . .. ................... (7) 63 292
Valuation allowance .......................... (1,186) 1,186 —
State income tax (benefit) .. ....... ... ... .. .. .. 236 98 (297)
Foreign tax credit carryforwards. . . ............... (75) — —
Reconciliation of tax provision to income tax return . . . (783) — —
Other. . ... .o (209) 215 451

$ 944 $ (65) $(2,945)
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Note 6. Income Taxes (Continued)

Significant components of the Company’s deferred tax assets and liabilities are as follows:

Year Ended April 30, 2004 2003

(in thousands)
Deferred income tax assets:

Reserve for doubtful accounts, returns and allowances. .. ... .. $ 988 $ 1,351
Reserve for inventory obsolescence . .................... 404 573
Restructuring and asset impairment accruals . ... ........... 1,128 1,413
L 55T o 1,073 895
Settlement payments ... ........... .. — 1,480
State net operating loss carryforwards, net of federal effect . . . . 304 —
Other . .. 3 189
Total deferred income tax assets ... ..............vueun... 3,900 5,901
~ Valuation allowance .............. .. .. ... . ... —  (1,186)
Total deferred income tax assets, net . ..................... 3,900 4,715

Deferred income tax liabilities:

Depreciation. . ... .. (774) (893)
Prepaid expenses and other . .. ....... ... ... .. o L (184) (58)
Total deferred income tax liabilities . .. .................... (958) (951)
Net deferred income tax assets . ... .. .o v ve e enunn.n $2,942 § 3,764

As of April 30, 2003, the Company established a valuation allowance of $1.2 million to reduce its
deferred tax assets to their estimated realizable value. Based on the level of historical taxable income
and forecasts for future taxable income over the periods in which the temporary differences were
anticipated to reverse, management believed it was more likely than not that the Company would be
unable to realize the full benefit of its deferred tax assets. Considering the fiscal 2004 results and
forecasts for future taxable income, management determined that it is now more likely than not that
the Company will realize the benefit of these assets. Therefore, in fiscal 2004 the allowance of
$1.2 million was reversed. Additionally, income tax expense for the year was reduced by $0.9 million
related to the reconciliation of the tax provision to the income tax return as filed for fiscal 2003 and
changes in estimates of income tax liabilities. The necessity for an allowance will periodically be
reviewed as taxable income is generated or there are changes in forecasts of future taxable income and
the expected realization of deferred tax assets.
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Note 7. Accrued Liabilities

Accrued liabilities consisted of the following:

April 30, 2004 2003
(in thousands)

Accrued salaries and related expenses . .. ............ . ... .. $3,007 $ 1,619
Accrued restructuring and restatement expenses . ............ 1,217 7,316
Accrued professional fees . . . ... .. L 753 375
Accrued volume discount awards. . .. ... .. 870 1,328
Accrued operating eXpenses . ... ... ...t 308 883
Other accrued exXpenses . ... ..., 506 806

Note 8. Commitments

The Company leases its office facilities, a distribution center and certain office equipment under
operating leases, most of which contain renewal options. Total rent expense amounted to $3.7 million,
$3.5 million and $3.4 million for the years ended April 30, 2004, 2003, and 2002 respectively. The
Company sub-leases unused space within its distribution center and office facilities. Sublease rental
income amounted to $1.1 million, $0.7 million and $0 for the years ended April 30, 2004, 2003 and
2002 respectively.

Future minimum obligations, by year and in the aggregate, under capital leases and noncancelable
operating leases with initial or remaining terms of one year or more consisted of the following at
April 30, 2004:

Capital  Operating

Year Ended April 30, Leases Leases
(in thousands)

2005 .. $ 59 § 3,309
2000 .. e 114 3,257
2007 . —_ 3,237
2008 . L — 3,422
2009 . — 3,440
Thereafter. . ... . . _— 1452
Minimum lease obligations . . . .. ....... ... ... . ... 710 24,117
Less sublease obligations .. .......... .. ... .. .. ... (7,288)
Total minimum lease obligations . . ............ ... ........ 710 $16,829
Less amount representing interest. ... .................... (42)

Present value of net minimum lease obligations . . ............ 668

Less: current portion . .. ......vvv it (557)
Long-term portion . . . ... vvu vttt e $ 111
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Note 9. Related Party Transactions

The Company had a Transition and Release Agreement with a former officer and director,
pursuant to which this former officer executed promissory notes in favor of the Company in the
amounts of $80,000 and $165,223. Under the terms of this Agreement, the Company was required to
cancel the $80,000 promissory note if certain conditions were met as of May 11, 2003. Effective
May 14, 2003, the Company entered into a “standstill” agreement with this former officer. Under the
terms of the standstill agreement, the Company and this former officer agreed to postpone any
determination of their respective rights and obligations under the Transition and Release Agreement
until March 14, 2004.

The Company and this former officer terminated the standstill agreement as of March 10, 2004. In
accordance with the terms of the Transition and Release Agreement, the Company cancelled the
$80,000 promissory note. The former officer repaid the $165,223 promissory note on March 10, 2004,
which had been recorded in accounts receivable.

The Company also had a loan arrangement with a former officer which had been recorded in
accounts receivable and totaled $294,037, including interest. The outstanding balance on this loan was
satisfied on February 17, 2004.

Note 10. Restructuring, Asset Impairment and Retail Store Closure Expenses

The Company has two restructuring plans, the 2002 Restructuring Plan and the 2003 Restructuring
Plan.

(a) 2002 Restructuring Plan

The 2002 Restructuring Plan included closing the Company’s wholly-owned European subsidiary,
refining the Company-owned retail store strategy, closing four Company-owned retail stores,
consolidating and restructuring the women’s line sales forces, discontinuing certain product lines,
recording losses on subleases of excess warehouse capacity and certain management changes. Costs
associated with the 2002 Restructuring Plan, excluding costs associated with refining the Company’s
retail strategy and closing its retail stores, are included in Restructuring and Asset Impairment
expenses. Costs associated with refining the Company’s retail strategy and closing its retail stores are
included in Discontinued Retail Operations.

The components of the 2002 Restructuring Plan expenses were as follows:

Year Ended April 30, 2004 2003 2002
(in thousands)

Lease obligations ... ... ...t $§ — $4,162 $ 1,047
ASset IMPaIrmMent . ... vt ot e e e e e (363) 338 4,987
Termination benefits . .. .. .. o — (121) 1,026
Foreign currency translation loss .. ...... ... . .. ... . . . L. 6 43 540
Other restructuring Costs . . ... .ottt e e 24 139 920
Total charges under the 2002 Restructuring Plan . .. .................. (333) 4,561 8,520
Reclassified to discontinued retail operations . ...................... (16)  (755) (2,9906)

Restructuring and asset impairment charges related to continuing
OPETALIONS « « « ¢ vttt et e e e e e e e $(349) $3,806 $ 5,524
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Note 10. Restructuring, Asset Impairment and Retail Store Closure Expenses (Continued)

The $0.3 million reversal of previously recognized restructuring and asset impairment expenses
primarily related to reserve adjustments for accounts receivable from former officers, which have now
been settled.

For the year ended April 30, 2004, activity in the accrued liability account associated with the cash
portion of expenses in the 2002 Restructuring Plan consisted of the following:

Balance at Subsequent Balance at Due Due
April 30,  Accruals, Subsequent April 30, Within After
2003 Net Payments 2004 1 Year 1 Year
(in thousands)
Lease obligations . . ..................... $2,855 $— $(320) $2,535 $320 $2,215
Other restructuring costs .. ............... 73 24 97 — — —
$2,928 $_24_l $(417)  $2,535 $320 $2,215

The remaining lease obligation balance relates to the loss on subleases of excess warehouse
capacity, which will be amortized through the end of the lease term in 2011.

(b) 2003 Restructuring Plan

The 2003 Restructuring Plan covered the closure of ten additional retail stores, so that all
Company-owned retail stores were closed by April 30, 2003. Costs associated with the 2003
Restructuring Plan and the costs associated with refining the Company’s retail strategy and closing its
retail stores included in the 2002 Restructuring Plan are included in Discontinued Retail Operations.

The components of the 2003 Restructuring Plan expenses were as follows:

2004 2003
(in thousands)
Lease 0blations ... .. vvvunuint i $(288) $3,762
ASSEt IMPAITMENt . . ..ottt e — 3,487
Termination benefits .. ...... ... ... .. i (€))] 255
Other TeStructuring costs . . . .. . oo ittt i e 42 934
Total charges under the 2003 Restructuring Plan. . ............. $(247) $8,438

For the year ended April 30, 2004, activity in the accrued liability account associated with the cash
portion of expenses in the 2003 Restructuring Plan consisted of the following:

Balance at  Subsequent Balance at
April 30, Accruals, Subsequent April 30,
2003 Net Payments 2004
(in thousands)
Lease obligations .. .............iuiiiiaianan.. $435 $(288).  $(147) $—
Termination benefits .. ........... . ... ... .. .... 31 g} (30) —
Other restructuring costs ... ... ... v 433 42 (475) =
$899 $(247)  $(652) $—
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Note 10. Restructuring, Asset Impairment and Retail Store Closnre Expenses (Continued)

As of April 30, 2003 all of the retail store employees had been terminated. Approximately
$0.2 million in severance and termination benefits relating to the retail store closure was paid out by
April 30, 2003 and the remainder was paid out during the first half of fiscal 2004.

The $0.3 million reduction in the lease obligation accrual related to favorable lease termination
negotiations and Jower than expected exit costs.

Note 11. Restatement Expenses

In fiscal 2002, the Company restated certain financial statements for irregularities and errors. As a
result of the circumstances underlying the restatement, three shareholder class action lawsuits and a
shareholder derivative lawsuit were filed, naming the Company and certain of its current and former
directors and officers as defendants. The Company settled those lawsuits and paid $4.0 million to the
plaintiffs. The Company also settled the previously announced Securities and Exchange Commission
investigation of the Company arising from the circumstances underlying the restatement. That
settlement did not require payment of any fines or penalties.

Restatement expenses amounted to approximately $5.0 million for the year ended April 30, 2004.
Included in this total is approximately $3.5 million of legal and professional fees, of which $0.9 million
we have advanced in connection with the indemnification of former officers, and $1.2 million of
accrued retention bonuses for certain key employees. Retention bonuses totaled $1.9 million, the
majority of which was paid out in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2004. Although the restatement has been
completed, the Company will continue to incur legal and other professional service costs in connection
with the indemnification of former officers and the ongoing lawsuit against Genesis Insurance
Company. These costs cannot be estimated at this time.

Note 12. Discontinued Retail Operations

In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2003, the closure of the Company-owned retail stores was completed
as discussed in detail in Note 10 Restructuring, Asset Impairment and Retail Store Closure. The
revenues and expenses associated with retail store operations have been presented as discontinued
retail operations in the Statement of Operations for the year ended April 30, 2004 and prior periods.
Included in the loss on disposal are asset impairment charges as described in Note 10.

Loss from discontinued retail operations, loss on disposal and revenues were as follows:

April 30, 2004 2003 2002
(in thousands)
Loss from discontinued retail operations . ... ......... $ — $ (124) $(3,056)
Income tax benefit. . .............. ... ... ..... —_ 31 1,120
Net loss from discontinued retail operations. . ....... — (93)  (1,936)
Income (loss}ondisposal . ....................... 231 (5,193) (2,226)
Income tax (expense) benefit ..................... (85) 2,306 316
Net income (loss) on disposal ... ................ 146  (6,887) (1.410)
Net income (loss) from discontinued retail
OPETAtiONS .« v v vt e ettt e e $146  $(6,980) $(3,346)
Revenues from discontinued retail operations ......... $ — $18,293 $13,185
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Note 12. Discontinued Retail Operations (Continued)

Retail operations were included in the retail operating segment in prior periods. This operating
segment also included the Company’s e-commerce site, which is now included with the remaining
wholesale operation segment.

Note 13. Shareholders’ Equity
Preferred Stock

The Company has authorized 6,000,000 shares of preferred stock, no par value. There was no
preferred stock outstanding at April 30, 2004 and 2003.

Common Stock

The Company has authorized 25,000,000 shares of common stock, no par value. 10,752,552 shares
and 10,634,132 shares were outstanding at April 30, 2004 and 2003, respectively.

Stock Repurchase Program

The Company has authorized a stock repurchase program to repurchase up to $6 million in
company common stock. The repurchases may be made from time to time in the open market or in
privately negotiated transactions, and the repurchase program may be suspended at any time without
notice.

Dividends

The Company approved a dividend of $0.05 per share of common stock, paid on April 9, 2004 to
shareholders of record on March 26, 2004.

Employee Stock Purchase Plan

The Company has an Employee Stock Purchase Plan which allows eligible employees to buy
Company stock at a 15% discount from market price utilizing payroll deductions. As of April 30, 2004,
179,354 shares had been issued under that plan and 195,646 shares have been reserved for future
issuance.

Stock Option Plans

The Company has eight stock option plans that provide for the granting of options to employees,
officers and directors of the Company to purchase up to 2,767,210 shares of common stock. Options
granted under the 1991 plan provide for 50% vesting on the first anniversary from the date of grant
and 25% vesting on each of the second and third anniversaries. Options granted under the 1995
director plan and 1999 director plan are exercisable six months after the date of grant. Options granted
under the 1995 employee plan, the 1997 plan and the 2000 plans generally provide for vesting-over a
four-year period with vesting at 25% each year. Options under the plans expire after 10 yéars and- have
been granted at fair value on the date of grant. . Ce . '
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Note 13. Shareholders’ Equity (Continued)

A summary of Company stock option activity and related information is as follows:

2004 2003 2002

Weighted Weighted Weighted

Average Average Average

Exercise Exercise Exercise
April 30, Options Price Options Price Options Price
Balance, beginning of year ... ... .. 1,486,535 $7.03 1,720,694 $8.96 1,202,750 $10.52
Granted ......... ... . o 410,000 491 592,500 343 700,750  5.84
Exercised . ............oiiiii.. (157,923) 3.75  (3,844) 186  (3469) 1.44
Canceled. .........coovuven... (267449) 877 (822,815) 861 (179,337) 7.23
Balance, end of year .. .......... 1,471,163 $6.45 1,486,535 $7.03 1,720,694 $ 8.96
Exercisable at end of year ........ 909,334 $7.35 806,501 $8.67 794,703 $10.64

The following information is provided for options outstanding and exercisable at April 30, 2004:

Outstanding Exercisable

Weighted Average Weighted
Remaining Average
Contractual  Exercise Exercise

Range of Exercise Prices Options Life Price Options Price
$1.44-83.75. . ... ... 331,469 8.3 $ 331 289245 § 3.27
381578 L 502,936 8.5 442 114324 4.75
6.11-7.17 . 210,796 7.2 6.40 124,428 6.52
7.81-1250 .. ... 278,374 5.7 9.56 233,749 9.56
13.67-1683 .. ... .. 147,588 4.5 14.58 147,588 14.58

At April 30, 2004, 410,488 shares were available for future grant and 1,362,060 shares were
reserved for future issuance.

Restricted Stock Plan

The Company has a Stock Bonus Plan that permits eligible employees receiving cash bonuses to
elect to receive shares of Restricted Stock of the Company in lieu of all or a portion of their cash
bonus. Up to 37,500 shares of Restricted Stock can be issued under the Stock Bonus Plan and no more
than 11,250 shares of Restricted Stock can be issued to any one participant in any one year. Restricted
stock may also be granted from the 1997 and 2000 stock option plans. Eligible employees are awarded
the Restricted Stock at a 15% discount from market price. As of April 30, 2004, 185,296 shares of
restricted stock had been issued from all plans, and 2,236 shares had been cancelled. Of these amounts,
37,603 shares had been issued under the Stock Bonus Plan, 1,128 shares had been cancelled, and 1,025
shares were reserved under this plan for future issuance. The Company has recorded deferred
compensation related to restricted stock of $0, $63,000 and $0 as of April 30, 2004, 2003 and 2002,
respectively. These amounts were amortized over the vesting period, S0% every six months for
restricted stock granted in fiscal year 2003 and 25% every six months for restricted stock granted in
fiscal year 2002. Compensation expense relating to restricted stock awards was $37,000, $0.3 million and
$0.7 million for the years ended April 30, 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.
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Note 13. Shareholders’ Equity (Continued)
Non-employee Stock Options

In January 2001, the Company entered into a three-year endorsement agreement with a
professional golfer. Under the terms of the agreement, the Company granted an option to purchase
60,000 shares of Company Common Stock that vest based on certain performance requirements. These
options are accounted for at fair market value in accordance with EITF No. 96-18. The Company
recorded marketing expense relating to stock options that vested as a result of achieving some of the
performance requirements. The Company has also granted options to certain consultants that are also
accounted for at fair market value and recorded as selling, general and administrative expense. The
Company recorded expenses related to non-employee stock option grants of $0, $47,000, and $65,000
for the years ended April 30, 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

Stock-based Compensation

In April 2002, under the terms of a Transition and Release Agreement with a former officer of the
Company, 50,000 granted and unvested stock options were cancelled. This was determined to be a
modification of the original grant. Compensation expense of $0, $79,000 and $81,000 was recorded for
the years ended April 30, 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively, based on the increased intrinsic value of
the grant.

Shareholder Rights Plan

In November 1998, the Board of Directors adopted a Shareholder Rights Plan (“Rights Plan”)
designed to protect shareholders from certain takeover tactics. Under the Rights Plan, the Board of
Directors declared and distributed to our shareholders a dividend of one right, each referred to as a
Right, for each outstanding share of common stock. The Rights are not exercisable or transferable
separately from shares of common stock until the earlier of: (1) 10 days following a public
announcement that a person or group has acquired, or obtained the right to acquire, beneficial
ownership of a designated percentage of the outstanding shares of the common stock and (2) 10
business days following the commencement or announcement of an intention to make a tender or
exchange offer that would result in an acquiring person or group beneficially owning a designated
percentage of outstanding shares of common stock, unless the Board of Directors sets a later date,
referred to as the Distribution Date. The Board of Directors has the option to redeem the Rights at a
nominal cost or prevent the Rights from being triggered by designating offers for all outstanding
common stock as a permitted offer. The Company may redeem the Rights during the initial 180 days
after a triggering event generally only by a majority of directors who are directors before any person or
group obtains or acquires the right to acquire a designated percentage of outstanding shares of
common stock. Prior to the Distribution Date, the Company is able to amend or supplement the Rights
Plan without the consent of any of the holders of the Rights. Following the Distribution Date, the
Rights Plan could be amended to cure any ambiguity, to correct or supplement any inconsistent
provision or any other provision so long as such amendment or supplement would not adversely affect
the holders of the Rights, other than an acquiring person or group. The Rights expire on November 20,
2008 unless earlier redeemed by the Company. Each Right, other than those Rights held by an
acquiring person or group, when exercisable, would entitle its holders to purchase one one-hundredth
of a share of class A junior preferred stock, subject to adjustment or, in certain instances, other
securities of the Company. In certain circumstances, if the Company, in a merger or consolidation, is
not the surviving entity or disposes of more than 50% of the Company’s assets or earnings power, the
Rights would entitle their holders, other than an acquiring person or group, to purchase the highest
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Note 13. Shareholders’ Equity (Continued)

priority voting shares in the surviving entity or its affiliates having a market value of two times the
exercise price of the Rights.

Note 14. Employee Benefits

The Company has a salary deferral 401(k) plan covering substantially all of its employees. The plan
allows eligible employees to contribute a percentage of their pretax earnings annually, subject to
limitations imposed by the Internal Revenue Service. The plan also allows the Company to contribute
an amount at its discretion. The Company contributed $211,000 for the year ended April 30, 2004.
Prior to this fiscal year, the Company had made no contributions to the plan.

Note 15. Earnings (Loss) Per Share

The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted earnings (loss) per share from
continuing operations:

Year Ended April 30, 2004 2003 2002

(in thousands, except share and per share amounts)
Numerator:
Numerator for basic and diluted earnings (loss)
per share—income (loss) from continuing

OPErations . ............o.oueenireunnn.nn $ 7,785 §  (5018) §  (7,027)
Denominator:
Denominator for basic earnings (loss) per share
weighted average common shares .......... 10,704,517 10,615,073 10,570,305
Effect of dilutive securities weighted average
stock options . ........... ... ... ... .. 457,592 — —
Denominator for diluted earnings (loss) per share .. 11,162,109 10,615,073 10,570,305
Basic earnings (loss) per share from continuing
OPETALIONS .« . v ot vt e et e e e e $ 073 $ 0.47) $ (0.66)
Diluted earnings (loss) per share from continuing
OPETAtIONS . . v v vttt e it et e e e $ 070 % (047) 3 (0.66)

For the years ended April 30, 2003 and 2002, no effect of common stock equivalents is reflected,
as the impact would be anti-dilutive to the loss per share. Common stock equivalents excluded from the
earnings (loss) per share calculation were 352,701 and 223,122 for the years ended April 30, 2003 and
2002, respectively.

Note 16. Litigation

As previously disclosed, the Company remains a party to its lawsuit against Genesis Insurance
Company. The Company’s complaint, which was originally filed in the United States District Court for
the Western District of Washington, alleged that Genesis’ 2002 attempt to rescind its primary Directors’
and Officers’ liability insurance was unlawful, and sought damages resulting from Genesis’ breach of
contract and the duty of good faith and fair dealing. On February 11, 2004, the Court entered an Order
granting Genesis’ motions for summary judgment and, accordingly, the Company’s claims against
Genesis were dismissed on February 13, 2004. On March 1, 2004 the Company filed a motion asking
the Court to alter its decision and vacate this judgment, and on March 11, 2004 the Company filed a
notice of appeal of the Court’s decision to the Ninth Circuit Court of Appeals. On April 21, 2004, the
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Note 16, Litigation (Continued)

Circuit Mediator for the Ninth Circuit Court of Appeals entered an Order staying the Appeal, pending
the outcome of the motion to alter the trial Court’s decision and vacate the judgment. On May 25,
2004, the United States District Court for the Western District of Washington entered an order denying
the Company’s motion to alter the earlier decision. Accordingly, the Company is proceeding with its
appeal.

The Company is also party to other routine litigation incidental to its business. Management
believes the ultimate resolution of these other routine matters will not have a material adverse effect
on the Company’s financial condition and results of operations.

Note 17. Subsequent Events (unaudited)

On June 24, 2004 the Company announced a dividend of $0.05 per share of common stock,
payable on July 16, 2004 to shareholders of record on July 8, 2004.

On July 10, 2004, the Company entered into a Transition Agreement with the Company’s CEO,
Fran Conley. The Agreement provides for Ms. Conley to step down as Chairman and CEO and as a
member of the Company’s Board of Directors on September 15, 2004. Ms. Conley will remain an
employee through March 15, 2005 and will be paid her current salary throughout that period. Pursuant
to the terms of the Transition Agreement, she will receive a cash payment of $250,000 on March 15,
2003, subject only to compliance with the Agreement,

Note 18. Quarterly Financial Data (unaudited)

The following quarterly information is unaudited. In the opinion of management, all material
adjustments necessary to present fairly the results of operations of the Company, for the periods
presented, have been made. All such adjustments were of a normal, recurring nature.

2004 Quarter Ended July 31, 2003  Oct. 31, 2003 Jan. 31, 2004 Apr. 31, 2004
(in thousands, except per share amounts)
Netsales. . oo $32,737 $34,747 $22,540 $38,350
Costofsales ...........ooiiiniinnene. .. 17,999 18,527 12,507 20,751
Gross profit .. ........... i 14,738 16,220 10,033 17,599
Total operating expenses . .. .................. 13,216 13,261 11,172 12,334
Income (loss) from continuing operations . .. ... ... 952 2,091 (857) 5,599
Income from discontinued retail operations, net of

129 S 146 — — —
Net income (10S8) « ... vvvii i, $ 1,098 $ 2,091 $ (857) $5599(1)
Basic earnings (loss) per share:

Earnings (loss) from continuing operations .. .. .. $ 0.09 $ 020 $ (0.08) $ 052

Earnings (loss) from discontinued retail

OPETAtIONS . vttt $ 0.01 $ — $ — $ —

Net earnings (10SS) . .. ..ot $ 010 $ 020 $ (0.08) § 052
Diluted earnings (loss) per share:

Earnings (loss) from continuing operations . ... .. $ 0.09 § 019 $ (0.08) § 049

Earnings (loss) from discontinued retail

OPETatioNS . ..\ttt i e e $ 001 $ — $ — 5 —
Net earnings (108s) . . . ... oot $ 010 $ 0.19 $ (008) § 049
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Note 18. Quarterly Financial Data (unaudited) (Continued)

2003 Quarter Ended

(in thousands, except per share amounts)

Netsales. ... oo e e
Costofsales .......... ... ..

Gross profit
Total operating expenses
Income (loss) from continuing operations
Income (loss) from discontinued retail operations,

net of tax
Net income (loss)

..............................

..........................

Basic earnings (loss) per share:
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations
Earnings (loss) from discontinued retail
operations
Net earnings (Ios8) . . .. ..... ... . L.

Diluted earnings (loss) per share:
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations
Earnings (loss) from discontinued retail
operations
Net earnings (108S) . .. ... .. .o v

............................

Jul. 31, 2002 Oct. 31, 2002 Jan. 31, 2003 Apr. 31, 2003

$33,307  $36,505  $25,582  $36,305
19,359 21,740 15,608 20,205
13,948 14,765 9,974 16,100
15,698 13,636 12,757 17,393
(1,245) 685 (2,370)  (2,088)
(342) (403) (7331 1,096
$(1,587) $ 282 $(9,701) $ (992)(1)
$(012) $ 007 $(0.22) $ (0.19)
$ (0.03) $ (0.04) $ (069) $ 0.0
$ (0.15) $ 003 $ (0.91) $ (0.09
$(012) $ 007 $ (022) $ (0.19)
$ (0.03) $(0.04) $ (069 § 0.10
$ (0.15) $ 003 $ (091) § (0.09)

(1) 1In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2003, a valuation allowance of $1.2 million was established to reduce
deferred tax assets to their estimated realizable value. In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2004, the

valuation allowance was reversed.
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SCHEDULE 11
VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS

COL. C
COL. A COL. B ADDITIONS COL.D COL. E
Charged to
Balance at Charged to other
beginning of revenue, costs accounts—  Deductions—  Balance at end
Description period or expenses describe describe of period
Year Ended April 30, 2004
Reserves and allowances deducted
from asset accounts:
Allowance for doubtful accounts . . . $1,541 $ (287) $— $ 549(A) $ 705
Reserve for returns(1) .......... $1,215 $3,122 $— $3,365(B) $ 972
Reserve for sales allowances(1) . . . . $ 990 $2,290 $— $2,461(C) $ 819
Reserve for inventory obsolescence . . $1,056 $ 218 $— $ 577(D) $ 697
Reserve for deferred income tax
aSSETS . .. $1,186 $ — $— $1,186(E) § —
Year Ended April 30, 2003
Reserves and allowances deducted
from asset accounts:
Allowance for doubtful accounts . . . $2,063 $ 893 $— $1,415(A) $1,541
Allowance for returns and sales
allowances . . . .............. $2,176 $8,173 $— $8,144(B,C)  $2,205
Reserve for inventory obsolescence . . $1,557 $ 344 $— $ 845(D) $1,056
Reserve for deferred income tax
BSSELS & vt e $ — $1,186 $— $ — $1,186
Year Ended April 30, 2002
Reserves and allowances deducted
from asset accounts:
Allowance for doubtful accounts . . . $1,378 $1,246 $— $ 561(A) $2,063
Allowance for returns and sales
allowances . . ............... $3,336 $8,832 $— $9,992(B,C)  $2,176
Reserve for inventory obsolescence . . $1,840 $3,230 $— $3,513(D) $1,557

)

In fiscal year 2004, we separated our allowance for returns into two components

reserve for sales allowances.

(A) Deductions consist of write-offs of uncollectible accounts, net of recoveries.

(B) Deductions consist of charges for sales returns and other credits allowed.

(C) Deductions consist of charges for sales allowances.

(D) Deductions consist of inventory sold at a loss.

: reserve for returns and

(E) Deductions consist of reversals of the valuation allowance for deferred income tax assets.
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SIGNATURES f

Pursuant to the requirements‘ of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Act of 1934, the registrant
has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

CUTTER & BUCK INC.
(Registrant)

July 14, 2004 By: /s/ FRANCES M. CONLEY

Frances M. Conley
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed
by the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

/s/ FRANCES M. ICONLEY Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and July 14, 2004
Director (Principal Executive Officer)

Frances M. Conley

/s/ ERNEST R. JOHNSON Chief Financial Officer (Principal July 14, 2004
Financial and Accounting Officer)

Ernest R. Johnson

/s/ HENRY L. KOTKINS, JR. Director July 14, 2004
Henry L. Kotkins, Ir.

/s/ LARRY C. MOUNGER Director July 14, 2004

Larry C. Mounger

/s/ DOUGLAS G. SOUTHERN Director July 14, 2004

Douglas G. Southern

/s/ JAMES C. TOWNE Director July 14, 2004

James C. Towne
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